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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a high investment risk may be attached. In
particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record
of profitability nor any obligation to forecast future profitability.
Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature
of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries
in which these companies operate. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of
GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the main board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM
is publication on the internet website operated by the Stock
Exchange. GEM-listed companies are not generally required to
issue paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly,
prospective investors should note that they need to have access
to the GEM website at “www.hkgem.com” in order to obtain up-to-
date information on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this report,
makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Launch Tech
Company Limited (the “Company” or “Launch”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief:
(1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading, and
(3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and
careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are
fair and reasonable.
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With an aim to be the pioneer of the automotive aftermarket in the
PRC, Launch Tech Company Limited (the “Company” or “Launch”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is committed to the provision
of the most superior and advanced products, technologies and
services to the automobile service and manufacturing industry as
well as car owners in the PRC and the world.

Capitalizing on its strong research and development team and
market sensitivity, and the cost competitiveness of manufacturing
in the PRC, Launch aims at being a new driving force of the world’s
automotive aftermarket.
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Liu Xin (Louis Liu) ZI% (25 2)
Chairman ZEF £

Operating results

In the fiscal year of 2007, the Group recorded a turnover of
RMB412,463,000 and net profit of RMB61,347,000, representing
a 36% and 49% growth respectively compared to the same period
last year. The Board of Directors will propose at the annual general
meeting to be held on Wednesday, 23 April 2008 a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2007 at RMBO0.05 per share.

Business review

In 2007, the Group’s overall business had more notable growth
compared to 2006. The results in new products development were
particularly promising. Business had been moving progressively
from the automotive aftermarket to pre-market, and the relationship
with automobile manufacturers was getting closer.

In 2007, the Group’s X431 Electronic Eye achieved global sales
of 22,000 units, with a significant breakthrough in sales in the US
market. During 2007, the Group launched X-431 TOP. The product
won recognition in big garages and 4S shops and contributed to

the increase in the Group’s profits.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
EEREE

In 2007, the Group successfully developed CRecorder and
launched the product in the US market through trade expositions.
As the US market is the most sophisticated auto repair and
maintenance DIY market in the world, the product was well-

recognised in that market.

In 2007, the Group made thorough improvement in product
testing and upgraded its database. Regarding wheel products, the
Group obtained independent intellectual property rights of a set of
calculation software which represented a significant breakthrough

in this area for the Group.

During the year, the Group successfully developed and launched
Weichai EOL equipment and signed a strategic cooperation
agreement with Weichai Power Co. Ltd. to carry out research and
development for diesel-engine equipment systems and promote an

indepth use of such systems in automotive electronic technology.

In 2007, the “Study on the key technology of automotive integrated
functionalities, product development and its industrialization”
submitted by the Group won the 2nd Class Prize of National
Technological Advancement Awards. The Group received much
recognition in the community which also motivated the staff
members of the Group.

Prospects

While maintaining a steady development in our core products, the
Group will selectively engage in high value-added hi-tech projects
to ensure the continual growth of the Group. The linkage between
the new products and existing products will be emphasized in the

new projects.

Launch Tech Company Limited &I T TTAEEHEZ AR (D B R A 7]
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The Group will further reinforce cost control and precised
production to respond to the sustained appreciation in RMB
exchange rate and the spiralling raw material cost due to inflation
in the Mainland. At the same time, within the domestic market in
China, the Company will adopt distributing as their principal mode
of sales and most sales personnel will shift their focus to automotive
manufacturers. The development of overseas market will go with
CRM to obtain better results.

The Group will make adjustments to its mechanical products by
relocating the production line to Shanghai so as to establish a
new team for the development of the wheel equipment business.
As the supply chain for mechanical products mainly lies on the
Jiangsu-Zhejiang region, the relocation will help save cost and
raise efficiency. On the other hand, with the extensive experience in
purchasing, production and quality control of “Launch Shanghai”,
the respective adjustment will allow more efficient use of resources.

In 2008, the Group will continue its focus on the market by
strengthening trainings for internal staff and distributors’
customers, developing automotive manufacturing key lines of
business and establishing customized business process for major
customers’ business. The Group will boost promotional activities
with full utilization of its call centres and CRM system to conduct
intense sales campaigns. We will continue to explore opportunities
in major domestic and overseas trade expositions so as to build up
a positive brand image for Launch.

Looking ahead, all fellow directors and staff of Launch will closely
cooperate and create ceaselessly to bring even better returns for
our shareholders and investors.

Liu Xin (Louis Liu)

Chairman
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Business Review

£l

MARKETS

In 2007, to manage the market better, the Group reallocate the
zones of its geographical markets to four zones which are PRC,
Asia Pacific, Europe and the America. Sales Directors, Operations
Directors and Services Directors were appointed in each zone to
further project and reinforce the sales function of the marketing

department.

In 2007, the Group’s management and the members in the
marketing department set up the Market Management Committee,
which acts as the highest decision-making body to respond to
market reactions in implementing strategies, tackling market
competitions and challenges regarding seven aspects namely
product quality, costs, stock turnover, delivery rate, research and
development, and production capacitiy.

In 2007, the Group held the Launch Institutional Cooperation
Seminar and Launch Teaching Equipment Presentation and give
out complimentary equipment to relevant vocational institutes.
The event further linked up Launch and the various vocational
institutes, allowing exploration of new areas in the sales market and

consolidation of the well-established brand image of Launch.

In 2007, the Group sponsored Borja Garcia from Italy Durango
Team in the GP2 race, the second largest scaled race after F1. The
Group also took part in Equip’ Auto 2007 in France, the AAPEX
2007 and other large scaled trade expositions.

In 2007, the Group posted “Launch Newsletter” on Auto
Maintenance & Repair, a prominent magazine in the industry,
resulting in a drastic increase for direct mails of the newsletter
which enhance more sales opportunities and promote the brand

image of the company.
In 2007, the Group held new product presentation and press

conference for CRecorder. More than 400 customers from the
Mainland, Hong Kong and Taiwan attended the event.

Launch Tech Company Limited &I T TTAEEHEZ AR (D B R A 7]
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In 2007, the Group launched the National Training Tour in
spring and autumn respectively with a total of 100 sessions
approximately. The Group also participated in the 14th
International Trade Fair for Auto Maintenance Technology, Tools
and Equipment, the 47th National Spring Trade Fair for Auto
Maintenance and Diagnostic Test Equipment, the 5th China
International Wheels Expo and the 48th National Autumn Trade Fair

for Auto Maintenance and Diagnostic Test Equipment.

In 2007, the Group set up telemarketing systems in overseas
market and further enhanced the quality of overseas customer

service.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The major research and developments of the Group in 2007 are as
follows:

In 2007, the Group improved the functionality of X431TOP. With
built-in functions including auto malfunction diagnosis, engine
ignition signal analysis, oscilloscope, sensor and simulator/tester,
and auto electronic map data search, the product is the most
powerful auto diagnostic equipment in the world.

In 2007, the Group developed CRecorder. The product can
collect engine data when the car is driven on the road. After the
recorded data are fed into the client’s terminal, the client will get
hold of current auto status, which is helpful in areas such as speed
monitoring and auto malfunction analysis. The product also allows
data to be sent to specialised websites so that problems can be

passed to the relevant experts.

In 2007, the Group successfully developed the Weichai EOL
equipment which is mainly for engine calibration. The Group also
successfully developed the US JSP scanner CODEKEY.

Business Review

FE 15 EER

—FTLE FENFIRRTEN -REE
MBEAMTIEE - REHHIRAT100% 755l
27T F14EEBRTEEERM - TARR
BRES FaE2EAERERAIDE

REETRES  FoETEBEEHRRKREE
g F48EEETERERMDEH RERS
RESERE -

—EELE REERIBLTEREHER
7o E— TR TBINEPRIEKF o

i
AEBE_STHFRNTEMBIEDT
ZEELE - TET XA31TOP 2 IhEE » 3% E

mETEREDH - FBRENERIN
TKEE - EREAHEER  TEEREER

HERASERN -8 RESHER AR
SR Z VB R -

—T T - f§3 T CRecorder © ;ZEmAL
e BEITRIRER 2 S E BB EIK
AEBBBRETEES N - BRBBTR
M SIS R BEMITEIEN - SRR
HRITE - RBEHRESTEHEBHBAZE
By W B ¥R MR RSB EEE
PR ABIE SR E I TRRE ©

—TTLF - KIFABMREOLRME - %R

HEEANEEMIZT IR ERJISP
7E #ll7E 5 K< CODEKEY

Annual Report 2007 —Z T+ F £

7



Business Review
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In 2007, the Group successfully launched a new 3D 4-wheel
aligner based on the “low cost financial proposal” and provided
a substantially improvement in Model X531 and X231 of that
product.

In 2007, regarding maintenance products, the Group made a
breakthrough in the key technology based on the existing cooling
agent technology and developed the MRF-458, which is an
automatic cooling agent recycler and injector product. CNC series
products were also improved and refurbished to meet the current

market needs.

MANAGEMENT

In 2007, the Group focused on the establishment of IT-based
facilities. After the successful networking with all branch
organizations in the Mainland, the Group had also set up a
specialised network globally, linking up all overseas major
distributors with the headquarters and branch organizations in
the Mainland so as to facilitate resources sharing and enhance

communication efficiency.

In 2007, the Group set up an HR (Human Resources) system
and administered KPIl assessment in the Group to raise the

management standard.

PROSPECTS

In 2008, the Group will reprogram existing business, with focuses
put on automotive manufacturing business, auto equipment key
customers business, auto maintenance equipment and trade.
While retaining the current equipment business, the Group will

boost its automotive manufacturing factory business.
In 2008, the Group will grasp the opportunities in the development

in China’s Automotive Industry to invent automotive hi-tech

products and extend its products and business.

Launch Tech Company Limited &I T TTAEEHEZ AR (D B R A 7]
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In 2008, based on the expansive US market, the Group will invest
more resources in the US market to establish a more effective
marketing network which in turns allows a drastic increase in
the sales of diagnostic products and other automotive electronic

products.

In 2008, the Group will provide more support to distributors
and advertising such as POP, shop advertisements, direct mails
and magazine advertisements, and tighten up cooperation with
distributors.

In 2008, Launch will launch X631 4-wheel aligner and will set up a
specialized management team for 4-wheel alignment database so
as to ensure up-to-date revision of the database which is essential
for the product to remain competitive.

In 2008, Launch will initiate research and development on
simulatory reversing radars and give out the products to interested
clients. In 2008, Launch will launch the mature, dependable and
high-performance KWB412 electronic-scaled balancer.

In 2008, Launch will develop diesel-engine electrical control
system mid-part products. The technology is expected to provide
a substantial forward move in domestic-produced diesel engine
control technology which will have a profound impact on China’s
engine industrial production and in turns bringing a consideration

income to the company in future.

Business Review
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Financial Review

MBEHE

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group adopts to a prudent financial management policy
and has a healthy financial position. As at 31 December 2007,
The Group had cash and bank balances of approximately
RMB191 million. Shareholders’ equity of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB524 million. Current assets was approximately
RMB671 million. The Group’s current liabilities of approximately
RMB335 million, comprised short-term bank borrowings of
approximately RMB233 million, and the rest were mainly account
payables and accruals. The Group’s long term bank borrowings
were about RMB106 million. The Group’s net asset value per share
was approximately RMBO0.87. The Group’s gearing ratio, which
represented the percentage of bank borrowings over total assets,

was approximately 35%.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, most of the Group’s
income was denominated in RMB whereas most overseas sales
were transacted in USD, and expenses were paid in RMB. As
the exchange rate between RMB and USD experienced more
significant adjustment during 2007, the management will try
to minimise the Group’s foreign exchange risk through price
adjustment with overseas customers for the transactions of which
are settled in USD, and it has reached initial understanding with
these customers. Therefore, the Directors consider that the Group
was not under substantial foreign exchange risk exposure.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had 1,533 and 15 employees
(2006: 1,261 and 11 respectively) based in the PRC and overseas
respectively. Staff costs, excluding directors’ and supervisors’
emoluments, were approximately RMB72 million (2006:
approximately RMB61 million).

The Group remunerates employees by their performance and
experience. It has adopted a share option scheme whereby
employees of the Group may be granted options to acquire
shares. The Group also offers staff benefits such as professional
training programs enhance staffs’ skills, knowledge and sense of
belonging.

Launch Tech Company Limited &I T TTAEEHEZ AR (D B R A 7]
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OTHERS

In May 2003, the Company entered into the JV Agreement with
Launch Europe, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, to
establish Launch Shanghai, with total registered capital of US$10
million, the capital injection was fully fulfiled in 2007. Launch
Shanghai is currently responsible for the production and sale of
Launch automotive lift, one of the core product of the Group,

contributing over 30% of Group’s turnover.

EBTARBRAERFEAERAA,

the Group and SK Networks Co., Ltd., a Korean company, was

a joint venture between

established in Shanghai in December 2005. In order to expand
its auto repair chain store network, the joint venture increased
registered capital to RMB54.5 million. The Group in 2007 invested
additional RMB10 million, and is going to invest RMB5 million in
order to maintain the 30% of the interests in this associate. By
leveraging on the advanced technologies of the Group in auto
repair and maintenance and the partner’s superior expertise in
repair service couching, managerial experience, the joint venture is
engaged in the provision of professional auto repair, maintenance
and decorations to its customers. The associate commenced
operation in 2006, and as it was still in the start-up stage, a loss
of approximately RMB2.7 million was shared by the Group. The
management expects that the associate will turnaround in 2008-
2009 along with the growth in business.

In 2007, apart from the part of the investment of the Group as
referred to above, the Group did not hold any material investments,
so as on 31 December 2006.

In 2007, the Group’s increase of registered capital via an additional
issue of 45,600,000 H shares was completed, with new shares
entirely subscribed by Templeton Asset Management Ltd. with a
net proceeds of approximately HK$62 million, which have been
applied to the research and development projects, expansion of
overseas market networks and working capital.

As at 31 December 2007, apart from the pledged bank deposits
of approximately RMB16 million (2006: approximately RMB26
million), and the pledge of certain land and buildings totalling of
approximately RMB58 million and (2006: RMB60 million), the
Group had no other significant assets pledged, so as on 31st
December 2006.

Financial Review
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EE - ESNeREEAE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Xin, also known as Louis Liu, aged 39, is an executive
Director and the chairman of the Company. Mr. Liu is the founder of
the Company and has around 10 years of experience in corporate
management, business development, product development and
marketing in the computer and automotive diagnostic and testing
industries. He is a graduate of Chengdu Technology University
(currently known as Sichuan University) with a bachelor’s degree
in applied physics. Mr. Liu is mainly responsible for the strategic
planning, overall management, establishment of strategic alliances
and development of overseas marketing and sales channel. Mr. Liu
Xin is the brother of Mr. Liu Jun and Ms. Liu Yong.

Mr. Liu Jun, also known as Charles Liu, aged 37, is an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Liu
is the co-founder of the Company and is the brother of Mr. Liu
Xin and Ms. Liu Yong. Mr. Liu has around 10 years of experience
in corporate management, business development and product
development in automotive diagnostic and testing industries. He
is a graduate of Tsinghua University with a bachelor’s degree in
radio electronics engineering. Mr. Liu once served as the head of
the Company’s R&D department and headed the development
of the first generation of Electronic Eye in November 1994, and
was honoured as one of the Shenzhen Ten Outstanding Young
Technology Experts in 1998. He is currently responsible for the
day-to-day operations of Company, and also supervises the
Company’s R&D and finance.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Professor Wang Xue Zhi, aged 71, is an executive Director and
chief engineer of the Company. Professor Wang is an expert in
automotive diagnostic and testing engineering with approximately
30 years of experience in related studies and research works,
and has published 20 related books and academic papers.
Prior to joining the Company in May 1998, Professor Wang
served as a professor of Xian Highway Transportation Institute
(currently known as Changan University) and the vice principal
of the board of experts of the China Automobile Maintenance
and Repair Equipment Industry Association under the Ministry
of Transportation. He heads the Company’s overall product
development, and was responsible for leading the development of
IVIEW-100 wheel alignment system and other similar large-scale
automotive diagnostic and testing systems.

Non-executive Director

Ms. Liu Yong, aged 45, is a non-executive Director since June
1997, and is the sister of Mr. Liu Xin and Mr. Liu Jun. Ms. Liu
once studied in Dalian Foreign Language Institute, and served in
the sales department and public relations department of Guilin
Holidays Inn and Guilin Rong Hu Hotel, respectively, and as the
general manager of Sunshine Travel Agency. Ms. Liu has extensive
experience in corporate management, sales and marketing
and public relations management. She is currently a director of
Shenzhen De Shi Yu.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Xiao Yu, aged 63, is an independent non-executive
Director since March 2002. Mr. Zhang is the vice-chairman of
China Machinery Industrial Association since April 2001, and
prior to April 2001, he served as the vice commissioner of the
State Machinery Industry Bureau, the chief of Automobile Industry
Division of the Ministry of Machinery Industry.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EE - ESNeREEAE

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (Continued)

Professor Hu Zi Zheng, aged 70, is an independent non-
executive Director since March 2002. Mr. Hu is currently the
professor and doctoral student mentor of automotive studies of
the school of mechanics at Jilin Industrial University. Mr. Hu is
also the appointed specialist of China Automobile Engineering
Association and member of the board of editors of “Mechanical
Engineering Paper”. He also served as the vice principal of the
State Key Laboratory of Dynamic Automotive Simulation and
dean of automotive school at the Jilin Industrial University. Mr.
Hu graduated from the Jilin Industrial University with a degree in
automobile engineering, and has around 30 years of experience in
automotive science research and teaching.

Mr. Yim Hing Wah, aged 43, has more than 15 years experience
in auditing, accounting, taxation, business consulting and financial
management. He had worked for Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
manager for 9 years from July 1992 to December 2000. After that,
he was the financial controller of Jiangsu Nandasoft Company
Limited and Chinasoft International Limited, the companies listed
on GEM. Currently, he is a partner of Chan, Yim, Cheng & Co., an
accounting firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Yim is a graduate of Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and holds a Bachelor Degree in Accounting.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants, a fellow
member of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a

member of Hong Kong Securities Institute.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

MEMBERS OF SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Supervisory committee in the PRC has similar functions as audit
committee, which mainly reviews the financial results of the
Company and the decisions made by the Board. Supervisors
can represent the interest of shareholders or employees, and
independent supervisors are recruited from outside and not related
to any of the directors, supervisors, promoters and employees
of the Company. Mr. Wang Xi Lin is appointed as a Supervisor
through the recommendation of the Company’s employees.
Ms. Hou Wen Tao and Mr. Guo Jian Yuan are appointed as

independent Supervisors.

Ms. Hou Wen Tao, aged 68, is a Supervisor since March 2002.
Ms. Hou retired from the Shenzhen Science and Technology
Bureau since August 2001, where she served as its vice
commissioner, vice principal and inspector since 1991. Prior to July
1986, she served as a senior engineer at the Changchun Applied
Chemistry Research Institute of the China Science Academy and a
visiting scholar of Proyaume de Belgique in Belgium between April
1981 and February 1982. Ms. Hou obtained a bachelor’s degree in
atomic physics from Jilin University.

Mr. Guo Jian Yuan, aged 60, is a Supervisor since March 2002.
Mr. Guo is currently the chairman of Shenzhen Cosber Industrial
Co., Ltd., a distributor of automobile maintenance equipment in
the PRC, vice-chairman of China Automobile Maintenance and
Repair Equipment Industry Association and chairman of Shenzhen
Automobile and Motorcycle Maintenance and Repair Industry
Association, in charge of their overall management. He also served
as the director and president of Shenzhen Tellus Holding Co.,
Ltd., a developer of mechanical tools in the PRC, in charge of
their overall management. Mr. Guo has extensive experience in

corporate management.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EE - ESNeREEAE

MEMBERS OF SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
(Continued)

Mr. Wang Xi Lin, aged 44, is the general manager of the
Company’s automotive diagnostic product division and a
Supervisor since March 2002. Mr. Wang graduated from the
China Mining Industry University in Beijing with a master’s degree
in engineering. Prior to joining the Company in October 2000,
Mr. Wang served as a senior engineer at several state-owned
companies and led the R&D works in relation to large electronic
control and electronic automation systems. Mr. Wang was formerly
the head of the Company’s R&D department, and had successfully
led the development of the ADC2000 auto diagnostic computer.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Huang Zhao Huan, aged 35, is the head of the Company’s
domestic marketing centre. Ms. Huang is a graduate of Nanchong
Teaching University with a bachelor’s degree in mathematics. She
is currently responsible for the development and management of
the Company’s domestic sales network and marketing activities
and customer relationships of its major customers. She joined the
Company in 1996.

Mr. Hu Kai, aged 34, is the head of the Company’s production
and procurement department. Mr. Hu has a degree in economic
management for Guangxi Teaching University and joined the
Company as a manager of purchase division in 1995. He is mainly
responsible for overseeing the Company’s production planning and

management.

Mr. Guo Feng, aged 36, graduated from Xian Electronic
Technology University majoring in Communication Engineering. He
has been responsible for R&D and implementation of automatic
control system of large buildings. He joined Launch in 1999 and
worked his way up from engineer, division manager to general
manager now. He has successfully led the R&D and improvement

of a series of products including engine analyzer and so on.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Jiang Shiwen, aged 35, is the Company’s Chief Information
Officer. Mr. Jiang graduated from Dalian University of Technology
and Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a master’s degree in
mathematics and a MBA degree. Prior to joining the Company in
2002, he had worked in several major privately-owned and foreign
enterprises as development engineer, in charge of the R&D work
relating to large scale management system, e-commerce system
and embedded system. Mr. Jiang oversees the construction,
implementation and maintenance of the entire IT system of the
Company. He has led the Company in the successful planning,
design and online operation of a number of large IT networks
including ERP, CRM and OA systems.

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT AND COMPANY
SECRETARY

Mr. Liu Chun Ming, aged 32, is the financial controller and
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Liu is a qualified
accountant and obtained a bachelor’s degree (Honours) in
accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in 1997. He
is an associate member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, and, prior to joining the Company in March 2002, has
worked in an international audit firm for few years.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Liu Jun, executive Director, compliance officer and authorised
representative. Mr. Liu will be advising on and assisting the Board
in implementing procedures to ensure that the Company complies
with the GEM Listing Rules and other relevant laws and regulations
applicable to the Company and responding efficiently to all inquiries
directed to the Company by the Stock Exchange.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EE - ESNeREEAE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established by the Company on 21
March 2002, with written terms of reference in compliance with
the requirements as set out in Rules 5.23 to 5.25 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The principal duties of the committee are the review
and supervision of the Company’s reporting process and internal
control. The Group’s audit committee has held five meeting since
early 2003. The members of the audit committee are as follows:

EREEE

ARBERZZTZE=F=A=+—HiREA
¥R EMARRIE 523 EE 525 KE 2 RE
R EEREREGRECERZEE - Fix
ZEGIEREABRARRZYEHR
RAMPEZRTIE - EECEZEZEEN_F
TRFEFYESEERAAANEE - BREE
BZRKEMT :

Name Position in the audit committee Position in the Board
HE ERZEERM E=em4
Mr. Zhang Xiao Yu chairman independent non-executive Director
R/NRSEA = BUIHITES
Professor Hu Zi Zheng member independent non-executive Director
HAF IR B & BUIFHITES
Mr. Yim Hing Wah member independent non-executive Director
BREERE D= BUIEHITES
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Group commits to maintaining and ensuring a high level of
corporate governance standards and continuously reviews and
improves our corporate governance and internal controls practices.
Set out below are the principles of corporate governance as
adopted by the Company during the reporting year.

DISTINCTIVE ROLE OF CHAIRMAN AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFiCER

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading the Board
of Directors in establishing and monitoring the implementation of
strategies and plans to create values for shareholders.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for managing the
operation of the Group’s businesses, proposing strategies to
the Board and the effective implementation of the strategies and
policies adopted by the Board.

THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2007, there were seven members on the
Board, which are the Chairman, two other Executive Directors,
a Non-Executive Director (“NED”) and three Independent Non-
Executive Directors (“INEDs”).

The INEDs are considered by the Board to be independent of the
management and free of any relationship that could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgments. The
Board considered that each of the INEDs brings his own relevant
expertise to the Board and its deliberations.

None of the INEDs has any business or financial interests with the
Group nor has any relationship with other directors and confirmed
their independences to the Group pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

DALY
1 E/D-’?&%

THE BOARD (Continued)

The Board met regularly during the year and on ad hoc basis as
required by business needs. The Board’s primary purpose is to set
and review the overall strategic development of the Group and to
oversee the achievement of the plans to enhance shareholders’
value. Daily operational decisions are delegated to the Executive
Directors. The Board met 8 times during the year and the Directors’
attendance is shown in the table on page 23. The NED and INEDs
may take independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense in carrying out their functions. The Board has arranged for
appropriate insurance coverage for the Directors

The Company appointed each of the Non-Executive directors
during the Annual General Meeting or by the Board for new
appointment during the year. The term of each of these
appointments shall be expired up to the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and can offer for re-election in the Annual General
Meeting.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee (“Committee”) comprises the three INEDs,
Mr. Zhang Xiao Yu, Professor Hu Zi Zheng and Mr. Yim Hing Wah
with Mr. Zhang Xiao Yu serving as the chairman of the Committee.
Each member brings to the Committee his valuable experience in
reviewing financial statements and evaluating significant control
and financial issues of the Group. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants, a fellow member of Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of Hong Kong
Securities Institute. Mr. Yim has more than 15 years experience in
auditing, accounting, taxation, business consulting and financial
management. He possesses the appropriate professional
qualification on accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under Rule 5.05 (2) of the GEM Listing Rules.
Member’s attendance at the five meetings held during the year is

set out in the table on page 23.

Launch Tech Company Limited &I T TTAEEHEZ AR (D B R A 7]

EEE(A)

FR - AEETHRREFIENGRTE
#oBERENEEYRAR AR AER
MBERIEERE A REBESHEIKEUA
RABRFEE - AECGBERR DB THITE
F-FRN EFEBRTTENGHE MES
M Fe BB 23 BATEIRA - IFRITES
RBYFRTESERITHRENBEN 7]
FABUEEATHNER  BAMHAQA
HHE o

BERIFNTESORARTANBRBFEASR
ZEFHEFTENFANEE - WEZEZ
EMEERRERBSF KRG ER  LAR
RERFBFASEREET -

EREEE

BERZEE (2B ) BM=(IBIIFRTE
£ ARNEEL  BBFEHRREEESR
EHEK HRRDNEELEERZEEER -
EEEPHHRE - FHEAREEAEERY
BEEHH SREHYRZESERMATH
HREELR BELRBEGINAEE
B RERHFAREHHAGEREBLE
BEFEEEE NRE - 5 WK B
EHANVBEEITEERB 16 FER - ®
EERIZEIR Em AR RIS 5.05(2) (RFTREMNE
BERGTERIERYBERES - RF
NBITHSRERMNK B HFRLERE 23R
PREVR A o



Corporate Governance Report

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Committee is required to assist the Board to fulfill its
responsibilities related to external financial reporting, associated
announcements and system of internal control. During the year, the
Committee reviewed the quarterly and annual reports. Additional
meetings may also be held by the Committee from time to time
to discuss special projects or other issues that the Committee
considered necessary.

The Committee is also responsible for the development,
implementation and monitoring of the Groups’ policy on external
audit. The Committee recommended the appointment and
reappointment of the Group’s external auditors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has not established a Remuneration Committee.
The Board is responsible for determining the Company’s policy on
remuneration of directors and reviewing all remuneration packages
of directors. The Company currently does not have any plan to set
up a Remuneration Committee considering the small size of the
Board.

In determining the remuneration of each Director, the Board
looks into individual competence and his/her contributions to the
Company, together with the benchmark of the similar executive
positions in the market.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for considering the suitability of an
individual to act as a Director, and approving and terminating the
appointment of a Director. The Company has not established a
Nomination Committee. The Company currently does not have any
plans to set up a Nomination Committee considering the small size
of the Board.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Chairman is responsible for identifying suitable candidates for
member of the Board when there is a vacancy or an additional
director is considered necessary. The Chairman proposes the
appointment of such candidates to each member of the Board
for consideration. Each member of the Board will review the
qualifications of the relevant candidates for determining the
suitability to the Group on the basis of his or her qualifications,

experiences and background.
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MEETINGS ATTENDANCE

Number of Meetings

Executive directors
Mr. Liu Xin

Mr. Liu Jun

Professor Wang Xue Zhi

Non-executive director
Ms. Liu Yong

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Zhang Xiao Yu

Professor Hu Zi Zheng

Mr. Yim Hing Wah
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TEERBRE

CONFIRMATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH
MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. The Directors
have confirmed, following specific inquiry by the Company that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model

Code during the year under review.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for
considering the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing
any non-audit functions performed by the external independent
auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could lead
to any potential material adverse effect on the Company. During
the year under review, the Group is required to pay an aggregate
of approximately RMB1,303,000 to the external auditors for their

services including audit and non-audit services.

DIRECTORS’ AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors’ responsibilities for the accounts and the
responsibilities of the external independent auditors to the

shareholders are set out on page 36.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance
standards on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take the
necessary actions to ensure the compliance with the provisions of
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices introduced by the

Stock Exchange.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is engaged in the provision of products and services
serving the automotive aftermarket and the automobile industry in
the PRC and certain overseas countries. The principal activities of

its subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the results of the Group and appropriations of the
Company for the year are set out in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively and the accompanying note 31 to the financial
statements.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of RMB5
cents per Share to the shareholders on the register of members on
23 April 2008 amounting to RMB30 million and the retention of the
remaining profit for the year of approximately RMB22 million.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the registered and issued
share capital of the Company are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group and the Company during the year are set out in note 13
to the financial statements.
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EEEREE

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the year and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Liu Xin (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Jun (Chief Executive Officer)
Professor Wang Xue Zhi

Non-executive director:
Ms. Liu Yong

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Zhang Xiao Yu

Professor Hu Zi Zheng

Mr. Yim Hing Wah

Supervisors:

Ms. Hou Wen Tao
Mr. Guo Jian Yuan
Mr. Wang Xi Lin

All Directors and Supervisors have entered into service contracts

with the Company, for a term of three years.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, the term of office of the Directors shall be three years
commencing from the date of appointment or re-election and
renewable upon re-appointment or re-election. In accordance with
the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association and the
PRC Company Law, the term of office of supervisors shall also be

three years and renewable upon re-appointment or re-election.

None of the Directors or Supervisors has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year with payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

(@)

Interests and short positions of Directors, Chief
Executives and Supervisors of the Company in the share

capital of the Company and its associated corporations

As at 31 December 2007, the Directors, Chief Executives
and Supervisors of the Company had the following interests
and short positions in the shares, debentures or underlying
shares of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”)) which have been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which have been required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or
which have been required, pursuant to Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by
the Directors, to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange, were as follows:

Long positions in Shares

Domestic Shares

Capacity in

Directors’ Report
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EE  EERIFETHAERE
Ay m

(a)

Name of Director

s

Mr. Liu Xin
I35

which shares
were held

ER &40

() Beneficiary owner

OEZHEAA

@Interest in controlled company

Number of
domestic shares

REREAE

132,000,000

138,864,000

RRFES  TRITHRABRESRAE
REREAEBEE 2 RA T 2 s R

B

RZZEZ+F+_A=+—H ' AQ7F
EF  FETRABRESFEHEEUTR
NAIREEBEZE (ERXREHFRHAE
i ([ 3825 S HAR A6k {91 1) 38 XV &) AR 4%
BHRIPEIEGIEXVEE 7 R 8 E/A

HMEARAB LR EARD ~ B
HRR O 2 EERER (BERE

&5 LB RGIABGXER AR EE
MEZEREZERNER)  HEHA
REES MR EDIF 362 fMEFEZ
Bt ASIRIRAIZER M ARAISE5.48
ERSOTIRREANETZESFRXHA
SARAB R EENIER

BRHRE

Approximate Approximate

percentage of percentage of

the Company’s  the Company’s
issued total issued
domestic shares shares
EARE ERARE
ERTRER BITROEAH
BMABED T BMAED
40.00% 21.87%
42.08% 23.10%

(Note 1)

(BzE1)
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EEEREE

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(Continued)

Long positions in Shares (Continued)

Domestic Shares (Continued)

EE EERTFETBAERE
ZHEz (&)

o RAE (&)

AERK (&)

Approximate Approximate

Capacity in

which shares

Number of

Name of Director were held domestic shares
BEEnR R &6 REREE
®1Interest in controlled company 10,261,000
O RN B
Mr. Liu Jun Interest in controlled company 138,864,000
215kt NGl ey
Professor Wang Xue Zhi Beneficiary owner 9,636,000
FELHE EnEA
Notes: BEE -

Mr. Liu Xin holds 60.00% interest in 7&IIT7)R #7153 2% 4 IR 22 7 (“Shenzhen
Langqu”) which holds approximately 42.08% interest in the issued domestic
shares of the Company. The corporate interest of Mr. Liu Xin in the Company
duplicates with that held by Mr. Liu Jun in the Company. By virtue of Mr. Liu
Xin’s holding more than one-third interest in Shenzhen Langqu, Mr. Liu Xin is
deemed, under Part XV of the SFO, to be interested in approximately 42.08%
interest in the issued domestic shares of the Company apart from his personal
interest of 40.00% interest in the issued domestic shares of the Company.

Launch Tech Company Limited Z3I| T STAERHE AN AR A A

percentage of

percentage of

the Company’s  the Company’s
issued total issued
domestic shares shares
o N EERARE
ERTARER BRITRGEE
RN BMAED T
3.11% 1.70%

(Note 2)

(PffzE2)
42.08% 23.01%

(Note 3)

(B3E3)
2.92% 1.60%

2T AR AR TR EHRRAEER AR (DR
SREH ) 2 60.00% s ¢ RIIRAEE AR AR
BEEITRNERA 42.08% ik o BIFTEEREQR
Z AR BRI R ERNA AR 2 R ER o
ARBIF R ARERIRI =2 — LA L - #UR
BESRERAEXVE - B EERBEEERR
AIE EITRERRF 40.00% 2 ARSI - TRHEAR
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(Continued)

Long positions in Shares (Continued)

Domestic Shares (Continued)

©) Mr. Liu Xin holds 40.00% interest in &3 T {5151 & B BR 2 A (“Shenzhen
De Shi Yu”) which holds 3.11% interest in the issued domestic shares of the
Company. By virtue of Mr. Liu Xin’s holding more than one-third interest in
Shenzhen De Shi Yu, Mr. Liu Xin is deemed, under the Part XV of the SFO, to
be interested in 3.11% interest in the issued domestic shares of the Company
apart from his personal interest of 40.00% interest in the issued domestic

shares of the Company.

) Mr. Liu Jun holds 40.00% interest in Shenzhen Langqu which holds
approximately 42.08% interest in the issued domestic shares of the Company.
The corporate interest of Mr. Liu Jun in the Company duplicates with that held
by Mr. Liu Xin in the Company. By virtue of Mr. Liu Jun’s holding more than
one-third interest in Shenzhen Langqu which holds approximately 42.08%
interest in the issued domestic shares of the Company, Mr. Liu Jun is deemed,
under Part XV of the SFO, to be interested in approximately 42.08% interest in

the issued domestic shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at the 31 December 2007, none of
the Directors, Chief executives or Supervisors of the Company had
any personal, family, corporate or other interests or short positions
in any shares, debentures or underlying shares of the Company or
any of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO.
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EEEREE

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(Continued)

(b)

Persons who have an interest or short position which is
discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the

SFO and substantial shareholders

So far as known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2007,
the following (not being a Director or supervisor of the
Company) had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
of 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or be directly or indirectly
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other member of the Group:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares in the

Company

() Domestic Shares

EE EERTFETBAERE
ZHfEzR (&)

(b) BEERBIFFRBEMEMEXVEE2R
BDMATHERGZRNERZALTRE

BERR

R-ZEZ+F+-_A=+—H E=F
FTan - A TFATGERARIZESRRESE)
AR RIRRAD S BARR 15 R A IR IR FE
HREEIEHIEXVEBE2 R 3D IE
NARARRBIRBE 2 ESREE  HE
BEEERMEEMEER TRERT
A EAMK B R RIREARE HIRE 2R
A AERIIR AN B 10% 3 A | 2

<

RARBDRGREBROZRE

O AEK
Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of

the Company’s the Company’s

issued total issued
Capacity in domestic shares shares
which shares Number of LR AF] ERQFE
Name were held domestic shares BERITRER BITRDER
£ R &4 AEREE BHAESH BHESH
Shenzhen Langqu Interest in controlled company 138,864,000 42.08% 23.01%
(Note 1)
IR RN AR (MF=E1)
Note: BisE -

The legal and beneficial interests in the shares of Shenzhen Langqu are owned
by Mr. Liu Xin as to 60% and by Mr. Liu Jun as to 40% respectively. Mr. Liu Xin
and Mr. Liu Jun are therefore deemed to be interested in all Domestic Shares
registered in the name of Shenzhen Langgu under Part XV of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(Continued)

(o) Persons who have an interest or short position which is
discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the

SFO and substantial shareholders (Continued)

Directors’ Report
EEEREE

EE  EERIFETHAERE
FaEs (&)

(b) HEERBERZRPEEMEXVIRE2R
M ATRERSIERZALTRE

ERER (&)

(i) H Shares (i) HAZ
Approximate
Approximate percentage
percentage of the
of the Company’s
Company’s total
Interests in issued issued shares
Capacity in H shares H shares LA AF]
which shares  long position HARAT B BT
Name were held HERRE EBTHR BRABEL
=18 R &5 2R BREs L Batk
McCarthy Kent C. Interest of corporation 115,961,000 42.38% 19.21%
controlled by substantial (Note)
shareholder (Ff3E)
F EAR R PTGl e A E iR
Jayhawk China Fund Investment manager 77,701,000 28.40% 12.87%
(Cayman) Ltd. WEKIE
(“\JCF”)
Templeton Asset Investment manager 45,600,000 16.67% 7.55%
Management Ltd. WEKIE
International Finance Beneficial owner 38,000,000 16.67% 6.81%
Corporation BB A
Genesis Fund Managers, Investment manager 38,000,000 16.67% 6.81%
LLP REKE
Jayhawk Paivate Investment manager 31,995,497 11.69% 5.30%
Equity Fund, L. P. REKE
(“JPEF”)
Genesis Smaller Investment manager 22,651,000 8.28% 3.75%
Companies SICAV WEKIE
Genesis Asset Managers, Investment manager 21,660,000 7.92% 3.59%

LLP

BRI
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(Continued)

(o) Persons who have an interest or short position which is
discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the

SFO and substantial shareholders (Continued)

(i)  H Shares (Continued)

EE EERTFETBAERE
ZHfEzR (&)

(b) EEREFEFRIPEHFEMIEXVIE2R
3O ATFRERZREREZALTRE
ERE ()

i HER(#%&)

Approximate

Capacity in

which shares

were held

Name BREH5
=1

United Technologies Investment manager

Corporation Master Trust BEEIR

Carlson Fund Equity Investment manager

Asian Small Cap WA KR

Note:

Approximate percentage

percentage of the

of the Company’s

Company’s total

Interests in issued issued shares

H shares H shares HARRAT

long position HARAT IO BT

HERRERE ERITHR RO

PR BHAES T Aot

15,349,000 5.61% 2.54%

12,180,000 5.34% 2.18%
BT -

McCarthy Kent C is interested in 100% of the issued share capital of JCF and JPEF.
Therefore, by virtue of Part XV of the SFO, the H Shares in which JCF and JPEF are
shown as being interested are included in and duplicate with interest in the H Shares
held by McCarthy Kent C.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2007.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers was approximately 28% of the Group’s
total turnover and the Group’s largest customer accounted for

approximately 11% of the Group’s turnover.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers was approximately 23% of the
Group’s total purchases and the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 6% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, or Supervisors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors and supervisors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any interest in any of the five largest
customers or suppliers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Directors’ Report
EEEREE

EERANRBIERS Wik

ARBESHERARR R REA(THE QA
PRI VEEAFEERINBE_TTLF
T A=t+—ALFEDRREMSEDAR
BZEMBRANTERIEREREANE

o

Bl

FTEFEFRHEER

FR-EELARFERENERBBOLSE
BEE XN 28%  MEESKATPAMGS
BAAEREN 1% -

TR KELAHBRABGENRBRAROR
SEBRERER 23% - MEERAHERR
HEEBRERN6% -

HREEMA - BEBBARREETRAL%
BENARAES  BEF  RENBEAL
HAEMBR - BEAFEEARTPRMHE
7 AR (] — R RO (AT i o

BE - HEIFEEEALQFTE LW

FR - ARBHEEAHBRARREREE
HEFXBERARRFERME LTES °

Annual Report 2007 —Z T+ F £

33



34

Directors’ Report
EEEREE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the PRC, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

BOARD PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES

The Company has complied with the board practices and
procedures as set out in Rules 5.34 to 5.45 of the GEM Listing
Rules during this year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee was established on 21 March 2002 with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee are
to review and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
control system of the Group. The audit committee comprises the
three independent non-executive directors, Mr. Zhang Xiao Yu,
Professor Hu Zi Zheng and Mr. Yim Hing Wah.

Five audit committee meetings were held in 2007 and up to the
date of this announcement to perform the following duties:

- review the 2006 and 2007 annual reports and first to third
quarterly reports of 2007 of the Company; and

- review and supervise the internal control system of the
Group.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has also made specific
enquiry to all Directors and the Company is not aware of any non-
compliance with the required standard of dealings and the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by
the Company throughout the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the management shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) had an interest in a business which causes or may
cause significant competition with the business of the Group.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Messrs. Grant Thornton as independent
auditors of the Company.

By order of the Board
Launch Tech Company Limited
Liu Xin

Chairman

Shenzhen, the PRC
7 March 2007
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BB EREE

o Grant Thornton
)

To the members of Launch Tech Company Limited
(A joint stock company with limited liability established in the
People’s Republic of China)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Launch
Tech Company Limited RN TAE R B R A Al (the
“Company”) set out on pages 38 to 121, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2007, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2007 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

7 March 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

meE W ER

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE—

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Research and development expenses
Other operating expenses

Finance costs

Share of results of an associate

Profit before income tax

Income tax (expense)/credit
Profit for the year

Dividends

Earnings per share for profit
attributable to the equity holders
of the Company during the year
- Basic

Launch Tech Company Limited Z3I T TAERHE AN AR AR

L= A= T—ALFR

Notes
BT
= 5
SHEMKA
EX
HaA 5
HERX
1T E R
MEEER 6
HhgEMs
TSR AR
i e RN 18
KR T 854 A e A 6
TSRt () K% 9
EEE R 10
BRE 11
ARATREERED
B AEMW
FRER
—EK 12

2007 2006
—EELF TEERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARET T
412,463 304,211
(1883,766) (141,283)
228,697 162,928
23,650 19,831
(74,284) (64,909)
(44,582) (87,708)
(16,027) (12,853)
(80,087) (19,085)
(23,166) (8,147)
(2,753) (961)
61,448 39,096
(101) 2,033
61,347 41,129
30,180 19,530
RMB RMB
AR AR

10.9 cents 7o

7.4 cents 7o




ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Leasehold land and land use rights
Goodwill

Development costs

Interests in an associate

Pledged bank deposit

Current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Bills receivable
Other receivables, deposits
and prepayments
Amount due from an associate
Amount due from a related company
Pledged bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade payables

Bills payable

Other payables and accrued charges
Income tax payables

Current portion of borrowings

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings

Net assets

Consolidated Balance Sheet
meEBEEAER

As at 31 December 2007 R —ZZ+

AERAME
FRBAE

W B R

H &L B b5 P
HE

RERA

BB 2 2 AL 2 i
B2 BT

REEE

it

B

R
HACEUGIR « 1
RIEBNHE
—RIE A AR
—BEmEAARK
BEMZRTHER

ReRALERN

REAME

R R S

R

HLA 1 3B R A2

REATFIEBIR

ERZRDEBH

HRBAEFE

RAERTHAMN

e

a5

AEFE

Notes
B EE

13
14
15
16
18
26

19
20
21

22
24

25
26

27
26

28

28

F+-—A=+—H
2007 2006
—EELF —EERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT AREFIT
215,656 215,508
22,453 23,794
3,658 3,658
43,975 41,247
7,636 389
- 5,040
293,378 289,636
83,165 82,219
251,582 233,784
2,510 -
142,414 105,864
493 43
- 1,271
15,669 20,784
175,203 45197
671,036 489,162
64,387 68,119
18,300 6,324
19,274 16,486
- 371
233,323 173,339
335,284 264,639
335,752 224,523
629,130 514,159
105,572 95,000
523,558 419,159
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
meEBEEAER

As at 31 December 2007 R-_ZZ-LF+—-HA=1+—H

EQUITY g

Equity attributable to the Company’s EATERBFEA
equity holders PE(LRER

Share capital (&N

Reserves i

Proposed final dividend EEAERE

Total equity R 4AEE

Mr. Liu Xin Mr. Liu Jun

B rE 219 %4%

Director Director

EZE EF

Launch Tech Company Limited Z#3I| i TTAERHZ AN B R A 7

2007 2006

fgg‘ti TEERF

Notes RMB’0 RMB’000
B EE AE%? ARET T
30 60,360 55,800
31(a) 433,018 343,829
11 30,180 19,530
523,558 419,159




Balance Sheet
BEEAEXR

tE+=A=+—H

As at 31 December 2007 7

2007 2006
—ETLFE BTN
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
st ARETT ARETET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment YE - BB KRB 13 164,835 160,122
Leasehold land and land use rights HELwRTHERE 14 10,077 11,149
Development costs LI 16 15,889 37,172
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZI%E 17 96,853 78,054
Interests in an associate R—HEE AR 2 s 18 11,350 1,350
Pledged bank deposit B ZRITER 26 = 5,040
299,004 292,887
Current assets REEE
Inventories w8 19 58,022 56,200
Trade receivables JEUE SRR 20 192,399 215,778
Bills receivable L e 21 1,000 =
Other receivables, deposits H b pUoE
and prepayments e MIE A 22 223,778 92,978
Amounts due from subsidiaries (R EPNEIDNES 23 48,633 36,622
Amount due from an associate —EEE R RIRFR 24 493 43
Amount due from a related company —ERAE R BIRER 25 = 1,271
Pledged bank deposits EHEMZRITER 26 15,669 18,377
Cash and cash equivalents Be MREEEY 167,611 42,762
707,605 464,031
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FERNE S RN 27 21,579 26,470
Bills payable EREE 26 18,300 1,510
Other payables and accrued charges Ha sk ERr &R 12,478 13,239
Amounts due to subsidiaries RHSEB R RIRIA 23 181,276 86,325
Current portion of borrowings BEZmEEH 28 232,926 153,339
466,559 280,883
Net current assets REBEEFE 241,046 183,148
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERS 540,050 476,035
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Borrowings BE 28 105,000 95,000
Net assets EEFE 435,050 381,035
EQUITY =
Share capital &N 30 60,360 55,800
Reserves i 31(b) 344,510 305,705
Proposed final dividend EEAREARE 11 30,180 19,530
Total equity FERAEE 435,050 381,035
Mr. Liu Xin Mr. Liu Jun
BFEE 23554
Director Director
EE EE
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
an\ IE%/JH:E%%

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—TZE+F+-_A=+—HILFE

2007 2006
—EELF TEERF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s  AREFTT AR®ETT
Cash flows from operating activities REEBREL CREBES
Profit before income tax BR TS BT & A 6 61,448 39,096
Adjustments for: e
Interest expenses B H 8 21,898 7,767
Interest income FMEUA (1,089) (862)
Amortisation of development costs FEE RN AS 2 2 5 16 9,254 9,490
Depreciation of property, plant VI - BB R
and equipment e 13 24,898 16,586
Annual charges on leasehold land TME i 2t
and land use rights ERESE 14 591 788
Loss on disposals of leasehold land HEREL Rt
and land use rights E % 2 B8 81 =
(Gain)/loss on disposals of property, plant HEYE  BEK
and equipment =z (W), EiE (2,732) 2,108
Provision for impairment on trade receivables B SR RIE 20 10,932 7,518
Provision/(reversal of provision) for slow-moving #5175 %,
inventories (Begem) 19 495 (1,819
Share of results of an associate i it/ NCIE S = 2,753 961
Operating profit before working capital changes &8 & & E B il 2 &£ &%= 7| 128,529 81,633
Increase in inventories FEEmM (1,441) (11,131)
Increase in trade receivables JEWE 5 BR FRIE BN (28,730) (45,795)
Increase in bills receivable FEUC =R IE N (2,510) =
Increase in amount due from an associate i l/N Tﬁlr)\i“ﬂﬂ (450) (43)
Increase in other receivables, deposits HbpedsaE -~ ke RFEN
and prepayments /TAIEijJD (36,550) (20,234)
Decrease in trade payables BB SRR (3,732 2,778)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables HA N RIE R
and accrued charges FEETER# I, Crd) 2,788 (11,799)
Increase/(decrease) in bills payable P =g, (R A) 11,976 (23,676)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations EEBES/(FTA)RE 69,880 (33,823)
Interest paid ERHLE (21,898) (12,057)
Income tax paid BEREH (472) (1,854)
Net cash generated from/(used in) EEES/(FTA)RE
operating activities HRE 47,510 (47,734)

Launch Tech Company Limited Z3I T TAERHE AN AR AR



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mEEHESRER

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

2007 2006
—EFTEF —TERXR
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
fisr ARETLT ARETT
Cash flows from investing activities BRETHELEZRBRS
Further investment in an associate R—EE R rzE—F
®E (10,000) -
Additions of property, plant and equipment W - HE RS
it zize (34,780) (129,508)
Additions of development costs B K N3 0 (11,982) (11,819)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash WEER A 7 OB 2
and cash equivalents acquired) BEMREEFEEY) 32 - 973)
Repayment from/(advance to) a related company (fEY), 45T —EIRE:E
RNz (B35R),/ FIE 1,271 (589)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant HEME  BENEE
and equipment FriS sk 12,466 2,876
Proceeds from disposals of leasehold land HEME T & T
and land use rights RSN 669 464
Interest received BUHE 1,089 862
Net cash used in investing activities KBS S 58 (41,267) (138,687)
Cash flows from financing activities RMEETBEEZRBERS
Issue of H shares BITH IR 70,796 67,217
Share issue expenses BRI 2 T (8,514) (6,523)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits BEIRIRITIFHK
A, (En) 10,155 (13,474)
Bank loans RITER 395,630 268,339
Repayment of bank loans BEERRITER (325,074) (155,167)
Dividends paid BERRE (19,530) (18,157)
Net cash generated from financing activities BB EBEA RS TR 123,463 142,235
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents HRE&RRESESEYEINFEE 129,706 (44,186)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—RAZBEERELE
BY 45,197 89,984
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, SNESBEFE RS
on cash held k% 300 (601)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December, R+=-A=+—HZHER
comprising cash at banks and in hand ReEEY  HERTER
kREE 175,208 45,197
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEREESEHmE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—TZE+F+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ADRABERE AR
HE EE By
Mg Dig RERE
BE  RAEE*  Statutoy*  Statutory*  BERE*  REEA*  Proposed  BREE
Share Share* surplus public ~ Translation*  Retained* final Total
capital  premium reserve  welfare fund reserve profits dividend equity

RMBOOD  RMBOD  RMBOOO
NERTL  ARBTR  ARETR

RMBOOO  RBMOOO  RMBOOD  RWBOOO  RMBOOD
ABBTL  ARRTR  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETR

(Note 31) (Note 31) (Note 31) (Note 31)
(Wkat)  (WES)  (W3ES1) (K3ka1)
A1 January 2006 K25 F-A-A 52,000 169,594 11,559 11,559 (662) 73940 19,530 337,520
Issug of H shares LfTHE 3,800 63,417 - - - - - 67,217
Share issue expenses O G - 6,529) = = = = = (6529
Appropriations Iy - - 4042 4042 - (8,084) - -
2005 fnal dividend paid BRZEEnEREkE - - - - - - (19,530) (19,5%0)
Currency translation EEREEE
differences - totalincome ~ERRBNES
and expense recogrised ba L UN T
directly in equity - - - - (654) - - (654)
Proftfor th year ERiE = = - - - 41,129 - 4,129
Totd recogrised incomeand. - EARARR L%
expense for the year - - -

N06proposed fral didend ~ —ETAERZECKERE = = =

= (654) 41,129 = 40475
= = (19,530 19,530 =

At 31 December 2006 RZERETA=T-BR

and 1 January 2007 “53t5-f-R 55,800 206,488 15,601 15,601 (1,316) 87,455 19,530 419,159
Issue of H shares HHK 4,560 66,236 - - - - - 70,796
Share issue expenses UGG 8514) [8514)
Appropriations i - - 3719 3779 - (7558) - -
2006 fnal dhidend paid B2 EREkS - - - - - - (19,5%0) (19,530)
Curtency ranslation ERAEED

differences - total income -ERRMNER

and expense recognised LEWAR

directly in equity - - - - 300 - - 300
Proft for the year EpiE - - - - - 61,347 - 61,347
Totd recogrised incomeand. - ERRARS 1%

expense for the year - - - - 300 61,347 - 61,647
2007 proposed el dvidend ~ —EE LR RERE - - - - - (30,180) 30,180 -
At 31 December 2007 W5t T-A=1-A 60,360 284,210 19,380 19,380 (1,016) 111,064 30,180 523,558
* These reserve accounts comprise the reserves of RMB433,018,000 (2006: HWEHEBEEFBENGAEEABRAZEE

RMB343,829,000) in the consolidated balance sheet.

Total income and expense attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2007 amounts to
RMB61,647,000 (2006: RMB40,475,000).

Launch Tech Company Limited Z#3I| i TTAERHZ AN B R A 7

AR #433,018000c( ZTEZERNF: AR
343,829,0007T) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Ly e Ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Launch Tech Company Limited (“the Company”) was
established in Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) as a joint stock limited company and its overseas
listed foreign invested shares (“H Shares”) are listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since October 2002. The address of the Company’s
registered office is 2-8 Floors, Xin Yan Building, Bagua
Number Four Road, Futian District, Shenzhen, the PRC and
its principal place of business is Launch Industrial Park, North
of Wuhe Road, Banxuegang, Longgang District, Shenzhen,
the PRC.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are the provision of products and services
serving the automotive aftermarket and the automobile

industry in the PRC and certain overseas countries.

The financial statements on pages 38 to 121 have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The financial statements
also include the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing
Rules”).

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2007 were approved for issue by the board of directors on 7
March 2008.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE—_ZTZ+F+_A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED 2. BREAFEI SRS B R M
HKFRSs == =P =
2.1 Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs effective on 21 BHEHR-—ZEZELF—A—HZZ

or after 1 January 2007

From 1 January 2007, the Group has adopted the
following new and amended HKFRSs which are first
effective on 1 January 2007 and relevant to the Group.

HKAS 1(Amendment) Capital Disclosures
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures

HK(FRIC) Interpretation 8 Scope on HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 9 Reassessment of

embedded Derivatives

HK(FRIC) Interpretation 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment

The adoption of these new or amended HKFRSs did
not result in significant changes to the Group’s or
the Company’s accounting policies but gave rise to
additional disclosures.

(i) HKAS 1 (Amendment) — Capital Disclosures

In accordance with the HKAS 1 (Amendment) —
Capital Disclosures, the Group now reports on
its capital management objectives, policies and
procedures in each annual financial report. The
new disclosures that become necessary due to
this change are detailed in note 40.

Launch Tech Company Limited Z#3I| i TTAERHZ AN B R A 7

BERZHETHEER] BRI
FR R 7 A
R-ZETLF—A—HiE XK
EERAATH-_ZZTLF—A
—BREERERLBRNEEERH
2RI RRBIERT B RN A
Al

BEGRERE1R  [EARE]
(BFTR)

BEYBREE  ERMTA-

75 w"E

B8 (BEBRBRE BEUBRE
#BZE®) %8|
—REE8H Epkiiof ol

5 (EEBBHRE REMEIAR
REZEE) MEAETE
—REBEIR

B8 (BEBRBRE  PHRBRE
#BZE®) LA
—REE105%

Rz SR BT BB
R A R S| AR B AR
ReBEZE  HEKERRINE

?go

() BB ERERUEET
R)-BAREE
BEESSFEAFE15R
(BETR)—EBEAEE - K
SEERSHNFEMBR
EHEREEATEH
Z -HmREEFAEN
R HIEANHEL0



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2007 &

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs effective on

or after 1 January 2007 (Continued)

(i)

HKFRS 7 — Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HKFRS 7 — Financial Instruments: Disclosures
is mandatory for reporting periods beginning
on 1 January 2007 or later. The new
standard replaces and amends the disclosure
requirements previously set out in HKAS
32: Financial Instruments: Disclosures and
Presentation and has been adopted by the
Group in its consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2007. All
disclosures relating to financial instruments
including the comparative information have
been updated to reflect the new requirements.
In particular, the Group’s consolidated financial

statements now feature:

- a sensitive analysis, to explain the Group’s
risk exposure in regard to its financial

instruments; and

- a maturity analysis in respect of liquidity
risk that shows the remaining contractual
maturities of financial liabilities,

each as at the balance sheet date. The first-
time application of HKFRS 7, however, has not
resulted in any prior-period adjustments on cash
flows, net income or balance sheet items.

2.

B FE IR AR AT

E-FTLET-AST—ALFE

BRANFTE] ST B R M
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE—_ZTZ+F+_A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective

The Group has not early adopted the following HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
year ended 31 December 2007. The directors of the
Company are currently assessing the impact of these
HKFRSs but are not yet in a position to state whether
they would have material financial impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements '
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs '
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments !

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 11 Group and Treasury Share
Transactions 2

HK(FRIC) Interpretation 12 Service Concession Arrangement ®

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes *

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 14 HKAS 19-The Limit on a Defined Benefit
Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and Their Interaction °

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2009
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2008
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B FE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis. The measurement bases are fully
described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge and judgement
of current events and actions, actual results may
ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in

note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Group made up to 31
December each year.

3. FESBERHEE

3.1

3.2

fmBLE

REUL S BHRRERAZEKX
SEHEMAIT - BB H 1R
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 &(ZE ==

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.3

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the
power to control the financial and operating policies
SO as to obtain benefits from their activities. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls another
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
excluded from consolidation from the date that control

ceases.

Business combinations (other than combining entities
under common control) are accounted for by applying
the purchase method. This involves the revaluation
at fair value of all identifiable assets and liabilities,
including contingent liabilities of the subsidiary, at the
acquisition date, regardless of whether or not they were
recorded in the financial statements of the subsidiary
prior to acquisition. On initial recognition, the assets
and liabilities of the subsidiary are included in the
consolidated balance sheet at their fair value, which are
also used as the bases for subsequent measurement in

accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between the Company and
its subsidiaries are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Ly e Ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.3

3.4

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet, subsidiaries are
carried at cost less impairment loss. The results of the
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable at the
balance sheet date.

Associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group
is able to exert significant influence, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of voting rights but which are neither subsidiaries
nor investment in a joint venture. In consolidated
financial statements, investments in associates are
initially recognised at cost and subsequently accounted
for using the equity method. Under the equity method,
the Group’s interests in the associate is carried at
cost and adjusted for the post-acquisition changes in
the Group’s share of the associate’s net assets less
any identified impairment loss, unless it is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale). The consolidated income
statement includes the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the associate for the
year, including any impairment loss on goodwill relating

to the investment in associate recognised for the year.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interests in the associate, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. For this purpose,
the Group’s interests in the associate is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 &(ZE ==

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Associates (Continued)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The cost of acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed and
equity instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs
directly attributable to the investment.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Where the associate adopts accounting policies other
than those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances, adjustments are made, where
necessary, to conform the associate’s accounting
policies to those of the Group when the associate’s
financial statements are adopted by the Group in
applying the equity method.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in
associates are stated at cost less any impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3. TEETHREE (&)

3.5 Foreign currency translation 3.5 HmE

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“BMB”), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At balance sheet date, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the balance sheet date retranslation of monetary
assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—TZE+F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.5

3.6

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into RMB.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into RMB
at the closing rate at the balance sheet date. Income
and expenses have been converted into RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have been
dealt with separately in the translation reserve in equity.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 January
2005 have been treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated into RMB at the
closing rate. Goodwill arising on the acquisitions of
foreign operations before 1 January 2005 is translated
at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of
acquisition of the foreign operation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods,
net of rebates and discounts. Provided it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured

reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B FE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.6 Revenue recognition (Continued)

3.7

M

(i)

)

(iv)

Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of
the significant risks and rewards of ownership to
the customer. This is usually taken as the time
when goods are delivered and the customer has
accepted the goods.

Revenue from the sale of software systems is
recognised when the software system has been
delivered and installed and the customer has
examined and accepted the software system.

Revenue from technical services is recognised

when the services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Non-refundable government grants are
recognised at their fair value where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any

qualifying assets are capitalised during the period

of time that is required to complete and prepare the

asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset

which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to

get ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing

costs are expensed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 &(ZE ==

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.8

3.9

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a
business combination over the Group’s interest in
the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities. The cost of the
business combination is measured at the aggregate of
the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the Group, plus any costs directly attributable
to the business combination.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units

and is tested annually for impairment (see note 3.12).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination is recognised immediately in the income

statement.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the

determination of the amount of gain or loss on disposal.

Research and development costs

Costs associated with research activities are expensed
in the income statement as they occur. Costs that
are directly attributable to the development projects
whereby research findings or other knowledge are
applied to a plan or design for the production of new
or substantially improved products and processes are
recognised as intangible assets, provided that they

meet the following recognition requirements:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B FE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.9

3.10

Research and development costs (continued)
(i) demonstration of technical feasibility of the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

(i)  the intangible asset will generate probable
economic benefits through internal use or sale;

(i sufficient technical, financial and other resources
are available for completion; and

(iv)  theintangible asset can be reliably measured.

The development costs capitalised, which include
cost of materials and direct labour, are amortised on a
straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
products or processes up to eight years from the date
of commencement of commercial operation. Other
development costs are recognised as an expense in
the period as incurred.

Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
subject to impairment testing as described below in
note 3.12.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of the
leasehold land at the inception of the lease, and other
items of plant and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—TZE+F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives, taking into account their estimated residual
value and using the straight line method, at the

following rates per annum:

Buildings 4%-5%
Leasehold improvements 20%
Mould and equipment 10%-20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ estimated residual values and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in the income statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.11

3.12

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights represent up-front
payments to acquire the land use rights/leasehold land.
They are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated on a straight line basis over the lease
term except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased assets.

Impairment of assets

The Group’s goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries,
property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and
land use rights, development costs and interests in
an associate, and the Company’s investments in
subsidiaries are subject to impairment testing.

Goodwill and other intangible assets which are not
yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they are impaired. All other individual
assets are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be

recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment
of time value of money and the risk specific to the
assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 &(ZE ==

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.12 Impairment of assets (Continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill
in particular is allocated to those cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from synergies of
the related business combination and represent the
lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units, to which goodwill has been allocated, are
credited initially to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any
remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the
other assets in the cash generating unit, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less cost to sell or value in use, if
determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B FE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.13 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified

as operating leases.

(i) Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the use of assess held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to the income statement
on a straight line basis over the lease term except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased assets. Lease incentives received
are recognised in the income statements as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rental are charged to the
income statement in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

St ET A=+ —BLFEE

3. TEETHREE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.13 Leases (Continued)

(i)

Operating lease charges as the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are
measured and presented according to the nature
of the assets. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense over the lease
term on the same basis as the rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases
is recognised in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in the income statement as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

3.14 Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets

other than investments in subsidiaries and an associate

are set out below.

Classification of financial assets

Management determines the classification of its

financial assets at initial recognition depending on the

purpose for which the financial assets were acquired

and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this

designation at every reporting date.

Launch Tech Company Limited Z3I T TAERHE AN AR AR

3.13 HHE (&)

i) FALBEAZEEHER
53
BECEREHAEE
DIRBEEEZME T A
EREF - RipE R
KERERMELEZTY
BEERATGAHEEE
ZEREE - WR BB
EH W ARz B ERE
RAFE -

XEREHEZRKES
WAREEHERERE
NI es R EER - BRIEE b
AR E 2R EHE
EEEMME - RESRZ
HEBEDHEKBERTHE
RAHEFNRER A
PRER D o A EEEE
£z et R RER A
A e

3.14 SREE

AREBRHBAR R —REBER
AlzemEE (RIREIN) 2 &5t
BEREIAT

ERMEEZSE

BIEEN & RHERE - AFBA
TREEZEN BTESRE
EZNRE - WHEAFRABERBR
T REER®RAEHNTEE

;'_Eo



Notes to the Financial Statements

B FEERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—TE+F+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.14 Financial assets (Continued)

Classification of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate and transaction cost.

Recognition and derecognition of financial assets
All financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases
of financial assets are recognised on trade date.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

LYy e Ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 &(ZE ==

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.14 Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and derecognition of financial assets

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments expire
or are transferred and substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred. At each
balance sheet date, financial assets are reviewed
to assess whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment

loss is determined and recognised based on the

classification of the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

At each balance sheet date, financial assets other
than at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, the impairment

loss is measured and recognised as follows:

(i) Loans and receivables

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The amount of the loss is recognised in income
statement for the period in which the impairment

OcCcurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B FEERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—TE+F+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.14 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

LLoans and receivables (Continued)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to
the extent that it does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in income statement for the

period in which the reversal occurs.

3.15 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise

those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities

relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are

unpaid at the balance sheet date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to
the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax

assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of

tax expense in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B AR R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE—

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.15 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tax
losses available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they are
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credit directly to
equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B FE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE—_ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.16

3.17

3.18

Inventories

Inventories comprise raw materials, supplies and
purchased goods. Cost is determined using weighted
average method and in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, include all expenses directly
attributable to the manufacturing process as well as
appropriate portions of related production overheads,
based on normal operating capacity. Financing costs
are not taken into consideration. At the balance sheet
date, inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated cost of completion and applicable selling
expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in
hand as well as bank deposits with original maturities of
three months or less and are not restricted as to use.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B AR R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—TZE+F+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.19

3.20

Retirement benefit costs
Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
a defined contribution plan.

The employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries which operate in PRC are required
to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government.
The Company and its subsidiaries are required to
contribute 8.0% to 22.5% of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank
borrowings, trade payables, bills payable, other
payables and accrued charges.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
as an expense in finance costs in the income
statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B FE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE—_ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.20 Financial liabilities (Continued)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation

under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by

another from the same lender on substantially

different terms, or the terms of an existing liability

are substantially modified, such an exchange or

modification is treated as a derecognition of the

original liability and the recognition of a new liability,

and the difference in the respective carrying amount is

recognised in the income statement.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B A& R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—TZE+F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.21 Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the party (i) controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with, the
Company/Group; (i) has an interest in the Group
that gives it significant influence over the Group;

or (iiiy has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—TE+F+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3. TEETHREE (&)

3.22 BBRIARAE

3.22 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date

and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
uncertain events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic

benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B A& R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE—_ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.22

3.23

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)
Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of the
allocation of purchase price to the assets and liabilities
acquired in a business combination. They are initially
measured at fair value at the date of acquisition and
subsequently measured at the higher of the amount
that would be recognised in a comparable provision as
described above and the amount initially recognised
less any accumulated amortisation, if appropriate.

Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting the Group has determined that business
segment be presented as the primary reporting format
and geographical segment as the secondary reporting
format.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, revenue
is based on the countries in which the customers are
located and total assets and capital expenditure are
based on where the assets are located.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B FEERAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—TE+F+_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experiences and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

(i) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 3.8. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use
of estimates.

(i) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result
of competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycles. Management will reassess the
estimations at the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B AR R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—TZE+F+_A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

)

Estimated impairment of receivables and other
receivables

The policy for the impairment of receivables
and other receivables of the Group is based on,
where appropriate, the evaluation and ageing
analysis of accounts. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each debtor. If the financial conditions
of debtors of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional provision for impairment
may be required.

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s

accounting policies

Research and development activities

Careful judgement by the Company’s directors is
applied when deciding whether the recognition
requirements for development costs have been
met. This is necessary as the economic success
of any product development is uncertain and
may be subject to future technical problems at
the time of recognition. Judgements are based
on the best information available at each balance
sheet date. In addition, all internal activities
related to the research and developments of
new products are continuously monitored by the
Group’s management.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B FE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE—_ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s

accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

Despite in the opinion of the Company’s directors
the Group had complied with all relevant tax
law and regulations as applicable including
PRC income tax and value added tax law and
regulations. Judgement was made in respect of
such assessment. Penalties and/or additional
provision may arise in case of non-compliance of
which the amount cannot be estimated reliably
for the purpose of these financial statements.
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B R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE—_ZTZ+F+_A=+—HILFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
SEGMENT INFORMATION

5. W& Al AR EEHR

2007 2006
—EELF  ZBERF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETRT

Revenue Yz 412,463 304,211

Other income Hibug A
Bank interest income IRITHF EWA 1,089 862
VAT refunds * HETRM * 16,850 14,558
Non-refundable government subsidies R ETAEAh 1,200 2,340
Rental income e WA 2,074 =
Gain on disposals of land and buildings & i RIEF 2 e 1,098 =
Others Efth 1,339 2,071
23,650 19,831

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
net amount received and receivable for goods and software
systems sold and services rendered arising from the principal
activities of the Group, net of value-added tax (“VAT”) and/or
business tax.

VAT refunds relating to the sales of certain products during the period
from 1 December 2006 to 31 December 2007 (2006: from 1 December
2005 to 30 November 2006) was approved and refunded by the PRC
tax bureau in the current year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B FE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group’s operation is regarded as a single business
segment, being an enterprise providing products and
services serving the automotive aftermarket and the
automobile industry in the PRC and certain overseas
countries. As such, no business segment analysis is

provided.

The Group’s geographical segment analysis on its revenue is

as follows:

Geographical market: mis@R
PRC other than Hong Kong FE(TRERE)

Asia other than PRC

Europe BM
Africa and the Middle East E DS
America =
Australia SEM

Sales are based on the countries in which the customers are
located.

No geographical analysis of the carrying amount of segment
assets and capital expenditure is provided as less than
10% of the segment assets and capital expenditure are
attributable to the markets outside the PRC.

M (T RIEHRE)

s~ Rt AR 2 EER
(%)

AR B2 FRE RS A — [EE S XS
DR B-RATFENMETEINEZR
SRR TS KT E R E M MRS
% - [t - BERREARBIED
DIl

REE 2 WA

Revenue
Wz

2007 2006

—ETTLF ZZEERXR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR%®ETT
172,085 143,430
69,296 29,817
95,519 73,712
4,988 16,792
60,278 33,835
10,297 6,625
412,463 304,211

HETREP ZMERRGHE

BERRERENINSEZ D REERE
AMERSER10% » FEik B R A
DREENEAMR ZRMEE M
BT o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—TZE+F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 6. BRFTBFAHEFR
2007 2006
LT ZETX
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Profit before income tax has been arrived  BRET{S T ADE I 0 4C kR~
at after charging/(crediting): GTA) THIRIEESBL -
Staff costs BTRA
Directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration ~ 2= NMEEH$E
(note 7) (MHEE7) 1,506 1,222
Other staff costs Hb 8 TR 64,894 55,783
Retirement benefits RARAE A 7,366 5,647
73,766 62,652
Less: Staff costs capitalised as B VERREER ANEE
development costs (note 16) BEARZ BTAHKA (M5 16) (11,982) (11,819)
61,784 50,833
Expenditure for current year AEEHRZ 6,773 3,363
Add: Amortisation of development costs hn s FEEKAS 2 #5E (5T 16)

(note 16) 9,254 9,490
Research and development expenses MEER 16,027 12,853
Depreciation of property, plant M - WENEETE

and equipment 24,898 16,586
Operating lease charges on land THIREFLEHEERR

and buildings 5,269 8,285
Annual charge on leasehold land and FAE -t R -t R

land use rights BEE 591 788
Loss on disposals of leasehold land and HERE L&

land use rights T R 1R 81 =
(Gain)/loss on disposals of property, HEWME - BERFZEZ

plant and equipment (Wzs),/ B8 2,732) 2,108
Auditors’ remuneration ZEREM B < 1,303 1,388
Net exchange loss b 518 55 17,279 9,894
Provision for impairment on trade FEUNE 5 5B R B R

receivables 10,932 7,518
Provision/(reversal of provision) for T ERE S (BERE)

slow-moving inventories 495 (1,819)

AEER_ZENER_FTTLFRE
RRFAX L FERAZRZEERERA
ZHHERA

The Group’s cost of inventories recognised as expenses
during the years 2006 and 2007 equal to the cost of sales
shown in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R a3k MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

7. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 7. EEREEWE
REMUNERATION
Salaries,
allowances

and other Retirement

benefits benefits
Fees ¥¢ - 28 costs Total
we REMEN BASHESR A5t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARMTT ARETE ARMTI

2007 —BTLHF

Executive directors HiTEE

Mr. Liu Xin 2IFT L - 386 4 390
Mr. Liu Jun 21554 - eie 4 377
Professor Wang Xue Zhi FEEHR - 273 - 273
Non-executive director FHTEE

Ms. Liu Yong BBt L 15 — = 15

Independent non-executive directors & FE#7TE F

Mr. Zhang Xiao Yu SRNESTAE 15 - - 15
Professor Hu Zi Zheng T IEHR 15 = = 15
Mr. Yim Hing Wah BREELE 5 - - 5
Supervisors 2%
Ms. Hou Wen Tao 1R B 10 = = 10
Mr. Guo Jian Yuan SR T E 10 = = 10
Mr. Wang Xi Lin FRMEE 10 384 2 396
80 1,416 10 1,506
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE—_ZTZ+F+_A=+—HILFE

7. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 7. EEREEME (E)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
Salaries,
allowances

and other  Retirement

benefits benefits
Fees & - 284 costs Total
e REMEFR RIKESKE 5T

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETE ARBTT ARETTI AREBTT

2006 —EERE

Executive directors HiTEE

Mr. Liu Xin 2L - 340 3 343
Mr. Liu Jun 21554 - 304 g 307
Professor Wang Xue Zhi FEEHR - 100 - 100
Non-executive director IHEHITEE

Ms. Liu Yong REi L 15 = = 15

Independent non-executive directors ¥ FEH7TEE

Mr. Zhang Xiao Yu SRANESTAE 15 - - 15
Professor Hu Zi Zheng AT IESR 15 = = 15
Mr. Yim Hing Wah BREEES A 5 - - 5
Supervisors 2%
Ms. Hou Wen Tao E3'9; 2o 4nm 10 = = 10
Mr. Guo Jian Yuan SRR T E 10 = = 10
Mr. Wang Xi Lin FAMITE 10 390 2 402
80 1,134 8 1,222
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B FE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
REMUNERATION (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the five highest
paid individuals of the Group included two directors and
one supervisor (2006: two directors and one supervisor),
details of which are included above. The emoluments of the
remaining two highest paid individuals (2006: two individuals)
are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e R R HMAET

RIRERAR

Retirement benefits costs

The emoluments of each of the two individuals (2006: two
individuals) fall within the band of nil to HKD1,000,000.
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors,
supervisors or highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office (2006: Nil). None of the directors waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments during the year (2006: Nil).

EEREEME (R
BE-2TLF+-A=t+—BLF

CAEBRUSEHATRERMU
EERNER(ZTETAF : ME
ER—NER) BEERER LR
% HBMA(ZTTAF - M) &S

)4¢

FALRFBAT

2007 2006

—ETF —EETRF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

641 730

© 3

644 733
MA(ZZEZERF: MU)ALTEZBEZ

Bl R Z %= 1,000,000/ 7€ » FIA
AEBUEABDIEES EEXESF
AT A ERED - tEREMA RN
ARE B 2 REISERBER 2 fHE
(ZTTRF &) - EENFABER
ESXREREERATFH(ZZZREF
) o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—TZE+F+-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCE COSTS B RS
2007 2006
—EELF ZEERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®ETT
Interest charges on bank loans: RITERZMEZH
— wholly repayable within five years —ERAEFNEEER 21,898 12,057
Less: interest capitalised included W ETAYIE - BE R
in property, plant and equipment BT ERFTER
(note 13) (BF5E13) - (4,290)
21,898 7,767
Bank charges RITER 1,268 380
23,166 8,147
INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT FIEH (), &R

PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT”) has been provided based
on the estimated taxable income for PRC taxation purposes
at the rates of taxation prevailing in the provinces in which
the Group operates. The Company’s overseas subsidiary is
subject to income tax at the rate of 42%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the Company has been designated as a new and high
technology enterprise. The Company is subject to income tax
at the rate of 15% (2006: 15%). The Company was exempted
from EIT for the financial years in 2000 and 2001 and was
eligible for and entitled to 50% tax relief for the financial years
from 2002 to 2004. Upon obtaining the approval from local
tax bureau, the Company is eligible and entitled to 50% tax
relief for the 3 additional financial years from 2005 to 2007.

Launch Tech Company Limited Z#3I| i TTAERHZ AN B R A 7

B REMSH ([ REMFH ) TiEA
SEREMEENERREF BIA
ZEEHERTMAMELBHE - NATFIZ
TBINIT B R BIZRIRA2% 2 TR PR 1S
i o

BIER BABREGI KA - AR RIE
ERBMBEMEE - NAFEKR15%
(ZZTTRF 1 15%) 2R ERBMNFT1E
o ARAIEREBHN_STTFR=
ST —FHRFEZPBRECEMRSH -
BEEBRITEAER ST _FE_TT
MEFRFERNEZS0%TERE © &
A BERIE - ARBTRAR T
REE TR HF = ([EHINT R EERE
Z50% BERE ©



Notes to the Financial Statements

B FE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT
(Continued)

BB R B AR AT AR (“Launch Shanghai”), a
subsidiary of the Company established in the PRC, is subject
to income tax at the rate of 27% (2006: 27%). It is entitled
to the tax holiday of “two-year exemption and three-year
50% reduction” from the first profitable year of operation. No
provision for EIT has been made for Launch Shanghai as it
did not derive any taxable income for the year.

YT T E R EE A R A al, a subsidiary of the Company
established in the PRC, as a software company recognised
by the local tax bureau, is subject to income tax at the rate
of 15% (2006: 15%). It is entitled to the tax holiday of “two-
year exemption and three-year 50% reduction” from the first
profitable year of operation.

Frig®t () % (&)

EETIE#RRERREETAR( L8
TUAE] - ARBRFERZZ B RF])
IRIR2T%( —FTRF : 27%) ZTHEH
TSN AR AN B AL 2R
FEENZHEIMERER=ZFRF¥ %
BE o AR B TTAER AN E I ]
JERTUMA - Mz AR L EHR B EAE
i AR T 4

ARBRFBRL B RRRYIM T
LRHFHEBERRARERE R HR
EZEMHRBIRR15% (ZTTRF :
16%) IR R BT SH - AR AR
REBELERNFEEFZH [MFEH
RR=FRF] R -

2007 2006
—TTLE  EENE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARMTR

HIR(Fx) HBeelE :

The tax (expense)/credit comprises:

Enterprise income tax — PRC BEEH—F

— current year —BHEE = -

— overprovision for prior years —BAFERERE - 2,261
Income tax — overseas FR{SH — /8N (101) (228)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frsfs () K% (101) 2,033
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—TZE+F+-_A=+—HILFE

9. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT 9.

(Continued)

Reconciliation between income tax (expense)/credit and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates is as follows:

Profit before income tax

Tax at PRC income tax rate of
15% (2006: 15%)

Tax effect attributable to tax exemption

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable revenue

Tax effect of prior year’s tax losses
utilised this year

Tax losses not recognised as deferred
tax assets

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

Overprovision of EIT deferred taxation in
respect of prior years

Income tax (expense)/credit

The deferred tax assets are not recognised as it is uncertain
whether future taxable profit will be available for utilising the
accumulated tax losses. Under the current tax legislation, the
tax losses can be carried forward for five years from the year

the losses were incurred.

Launch Tech Company Limited Z#3I| i TTAERHZ AN B R A 7

Frig®t () % (&)

BIRE(H) B e mgsta ) REmi

K& 2 HERWT ¢
2007 2006
ZETLF ZEERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®ETT
KR PSR R A 61,448 39,096
RPBIFTEHHRE15%

(ZZZTRF : 15%)

BN 2 BHIE 9,217) (5,864)
R BEHE 17,368 8,162
AR S 2 Big 2 (1,461) (43)
BART S 2 RIS 2 91 1,097
AEEBRBAFEHHER

LR E - 3
RERBIEETRITEE E

Z RS E e (6,791) (3,434)
B AR TR R & ©1) (149)
BAEFECEMERELTC Y

BERESRE 2,261
FTE® () e (101) 2,033

AR HBER

R IR BERETE AR SR 75 B ARt 1) LA )
B L 3 R FERRIRRE AR
HEEE - RERITHISED - HEE
BRIBHELBRFEAEERE -



10.

11.

12.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B FE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Of the consolidated profit attributable to the equity holders
of the Company for the year of RMB61,347,000 (2006:
RMB41,129,000), a profit of RMB11,263,000 (20086: loss
of RMB22,449,000) has been dealt with in the financial

statements of the Company.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2007
was declared.

A final dividend of RMBO0.05 (2006: RMBO0.035) per share
amounting to approximately RMB30,180,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2007 (2006: RMB19,530,000) has
been proposed by the directors after the balance sheet date.
The proposal is subject to approval by the shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. The final dividend
proposed has not been recognised as a liability at the
balance sheet date, but reflected as an appropriation of
retained profits for the year ended 31 December 2007.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of
RMB61,347,000 (2006: RMB41,129,000) and on weighted
average number of 560,623,562 and 557,063,014 shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006

respectively.

No diluted earnings per share has been presented as there
had been no dilutive potential shares in both years of 2007
and 2006.

10. AEFEREH

11.

RNEEARRIE=FE AEGZGER
FAR® 61,347,000 T ( — T/ NE -
AR 41,129,0007T) F + HHARKE
11,263,000 (ZZEZTRF : BEAR
#& 22,449,000 7T ) 2 )i RIS A1 7] 81 75
R R o

RE

ARA T EERBE_TTLF+=A
=+ —HIEFEHERE -
EENGERRERRERE_ST L
F+tZA=+—BLEFEZREREE
R AREEQ.05 L (ZEERF : AREE
0.0357T) * & %) AR H30,180,0007T
(ZZTTRF : AR¥19,530,0007T) °
REEZASRENEERFTAFRS
b - ZERREBRENEE BT R
EREAEE HERMAEZ_ZT+
F+-ZA=1+—BLEFEZRBEFND
fig o

12. BREF

BREARBADIBERNARERZTE
AR AR 61,347,0000 (=&
TRF - ARM41,129,0007T ) &5
AEE LN _TTRFE+ A
=+ —HIEFEDRETRMOMET S
560,623,562 f% & 557,063,014 f% & 15
FTE o

AR ST F R T NFRFIE

BEEE ) 2ty - T E 275|500
SEAR) o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE—_ZTZ+F+_A=+—HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

At 1 January 2006
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2006

Opening net book amount
Addtions

Acquisition of a subsiolary
Disposals

Depreciation

Transfer

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2006
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2007

Opening net book amount
Addtions

Disposals

Depreciation

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2007
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

13. Y% BEKRR®E

58
Construction Leasehold ~ Mould and Motor
in progress Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles Total
RIR B HENELE HARRE RE &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT  ARETR ARETE ARETT  ARETR ARETR
RZEE E—A—H
A 2,581 55,236 10,716 39,691 19,543 127,767
Zithe = (7,289) (5,443) (12,562) (7,965) (33,259
RRFE 2,581 47,947 5,273 27,129 11,578 94,508
BE-E3 Et-A=1-H

HEE
BEEFE 2,581 47,947 5,273 27129 11,578 94,508
AE 121,30 65 7 6,750 5,607 133,798
E-RHBLA - - - 8,592 180 8,772
e - (1,444) ®) (1,991) (1,541) (4,984)
il = (3,712 @.741) (7.420) 2,713 (16,586)
e (123,886) 97,070 75 26,730 i =
HRERTE = 139,926 2,670 59,790 13,122 215508
R-EEE+-A=1-H
R = 150,685 10,850 76,117 21,924 259576
ZitHE - (10,759) (8,180) (16,327) (8.802) (44,068)
RH¥E = 139,926 2,670 59,790 13,122 215508
BE-ZEtF+-A=1-H
HEE

HERTE = 139,926 2,670 59,790 13122 215508
AE - 20,732 36 10,827 3,185 34,780
e - (7.975) (421) (86) (1252) (9,734
il - (6,932) (858) (12,852) (4,256) (24,898)
HREAFE - 145,751 1427 57,679 10,799 215,656
R-EZtFT-A=T-H
A = 157,281 3847 86,028 21,684 268,840
Zithe - (11,530) (2,420) (28,349) (10,885) (53,184)
FEFE = 145,751 1407 57,679 10,799 215,656
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Company

At 1 January 2006
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2006

Opening net book valug
Addtions

Disposals

Transfer

Depreciation
Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2006
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2007

Opening net book value
Addtions

Disposals

Depreciation

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2007
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2007 &

B FE IR AR AT

E-FTLET-AST—ALFE

13. Y% - MERRHE (F&)

N
Construction Leasehold ~ Mould and Motor
in progress Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles Total
HEIR BT HENEEE BARRE RE a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT  ARETn ARETRT  ARETn  ARETr  AEETR
R=EZE-F-H
R 2,144 20,137 10,716 25,766 19,067 77,830
ZithE - (5,500) (5,442) (10474) (7,855) (29,271)
FH¥E 2,144 14,637 5,274 15,20 1,212 48,559
BE-ZE3,F+-A=1-H

HEE
HERTE 2,144 14,637 5,274 15,202 1,212 48,559
AE 117,986 = 7 5722 5,343 109,122
3 - (1,460) (45) (4419 (1,805) (7,729
g (120,130) 94,006 75 26,049 = =
Vil = (@18 (2,737) (3,691) (2,484 (9,830)
HRERTE = 106,265 2,638 38,953 12,266 160,122
RZEEAF+-A=1-H
A - 112439 11,540 48,006 20,263 192,248
BiirE = (6,174) (8.902) (9,083) (7,997) (32,126)
RH¥E = 106,265 2,638 38,953 12,266 160,122
BE-ZEtF+-A=1-H
HEE

HERTE = 106,265 2,638 38,953 12,266 160,122
AE - 20,722 36 7,848 3,185 31791
e - (7.975) (421) (10) (1,262) (9,658)
il - (5,115) (850) (7.458) (3,997) (17,420
HREETE - 113,897 1,403 39,333 10,202 164,835
R-EZtFT-A=T-H
KA = 119,025 3815 55,783 20,023 198,646
ZiHE - (5,128) (2.412) (16,450) (0,821) (33,811)
FEFE = 113,897 1403 39,333 10,202 164,835
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—TZE+F+-_A=+—HILFE

13.

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Bank borrowings are secured on the Group’s and the
Company’s certain buildings for the carrying amount of
RMB35,298,000 and RMB3,460,000 respectively (2006:
RMB37,315,000 and RMB3,670,000 respectively).

There was no net interest capitalised for the Group’s and
the Company’s buildings during the year. In year 2006, the
Group’s and the Company’s buildings were net interest
capitalised of RMB4,290,000 during the construction of new
factory and office premises. Construction of such premises
was completed during the year and the premises were
already in use. However, the relevant building ownership
certificates have yet to be issued by the local land bureau in
the PRC.

LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE
RIGHTS

These are up-front payments to acquire the leasehold land
and land use rights and their carrying amount are analysed as

follows:

Group

Outside Hong Kong held on: AR -
Leases of over 50 years 50F A 2
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10505 24

Launch Tech Company Limited Z#3I| i TTAERHZ AN B R A 7

13.

14.

% - BB KRR (&)

WITERDUAEERARRRAMAE
2Bl A A R #35,298,0007T & A R
¥ 3,460,000 T(ZZTZXRF : AR
37,315,0007C & A R #3,670,0007T ) &)
B TIEFIEER -

RAFER - AEE RN AIEF IR
FREARZFEFE - RZZETNF A
SERANTEFREETRE RPFA
EYHERBREAZAEFERAR
#& 4,290,000 7T ° B RBAYIZEE RF AR
TIHEAER o BEFRRED LD
BULERMEFMBERE -

ME T+t E AR

It To B8 AR & £ 3 No 4 3 {5k R P S S
ZFEE  EREFESTHT

S
2007 2006
—EELF ZBERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TRT
1,101 1,168
21,352 22,626
22,453 23,794




14. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE 14.

Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R a3k MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

FHE T b % + 3 5 A AE (48)

RIGHTS (Continued)

Group (Continued)

2007 2006
—EEF —EFERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AR®TT
Opening carrying amount HA®IRRE(E 23,794 25,046
Disposals e (750) (464)
Annual charges of prepaid operating A ERENR
lease payment ZFE (591) (788)
Closing carrying amount HARERE(E 22,453 23,794
Company AL
2007 2006
—EFTLEF —TERXR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Outside Hong Kong held on: BAAIME :
Leases of over 50 years 50 F A 24 1,101 1,168
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10FE50F 2L 8,976 9,981
10,077 11,149
2007 2006
—ETTLEF —TERXR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Opening carrying amount HAYIER A 11,149 11,805
Disposals s (750) (464)
Annual charges of prepaid operating AT EHENR
lease payment LFEE (322) (192)
Closing carrying amount HARAREE 10,077 11,149

Bank borrowings are secured on the Group's and the
Company's land for the carrying amount of RMB22,453,000
(2006: RMB22,982,000) and RMB10,077,000 respectively
(2006: RMB10,335,000).

RITERDAREE R AR AREE
o Bl A AR 2245300 (=ZFF
NEF AR®22082,0007T) B AR
¥10,077,000 T (ZZEETRF : AREE

10,335,000 7T ) )5 T T /EHE 3 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 &2 =%

2t

The goodwill at 31 December 2007 comprises goodwill
arising from the acquisitions of Launch Shanghai, Launch
Software and Launch Europe GmbH (“Launch Europe”)
amounting to approximately RMB1.5 million, RMB1.2
million and RMB1.1 million respectively at the respective
dates of acquisition. Based on the impairment assessment
of the recoverable amount of goodwill using the value-in-
use calculations, covering a four-year cash-flow projections
discounted at 7.36% per annum, in the opinion of the
directors, no impairment provision (2006: Nil) is considered
necessary for the balance of the Group’s goodwill for the

year.

Launch Tech Company Limited Z3I T TAERHE AN AR AR

L= A= T—ALFR

15. GOODWILL 15. B8

Group =SE
2007 2006
—ETE  ZETRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TT
Opening carrying amount HA¥AREE 3,658 2,636
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 32) U BE — R P E 2 Al (FisE32) = 1,022
Closing net carrying amount B REREDFE 3,658 3,658

Closing carrying amount HIRAREE

Gross carrying amount BRmEAE 3,796 3,796
Accumulated amortisation REH#H (138) (138)
Closing net carrying amount B REREDFE 3,658 3,658

R-BEZ+F+_A=+—HBzH
2 SREEWE 8T - TR
¥ Launch Europe GmbH ([Launch
Europel) MELZEE - PN URER
B B4 AR ¥ 1,500,000 70 « AR
1,200,0007T & A R #1,100,0007¢ ° £
B BEEEE B AWE 2 EIERE
A - WINERTEFER M ELAT7.36%
FREEITAIR - KBAHGER 5
RABBHAEENE 2 REERER
HB(ZEEREFE  ]E) -



Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R a3k MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

16. DEVELOPMENT COSTS 16. BAZERAS

2007 —EZLF
Group Company
S YNC]
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARKETT
Opening carrying amount HAFER A 41,247 37,172
Development labour cost capitalised FEE BN ARBIEE R 11,982 2,871
Transfer to a subsidiary = —Rf B AR = (20,241)
Amortisation charge (note 6) #IEER (MEe) (9,254) (3,913)
Closing carrying amount HAIRAREE 43,975 15,889
Gross carrying amount REAE 77,152 29,552
Accumulated amortisation BT (33,177) (13,663)
Closing carrying amount HARERTE 43,975 15,889
2006 —BEAE
Group Company
%8 A7
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR%®ETT
Opening carrying amount HARIERE (B 38,918 38,295
Development labour cost capitalised L BN ARBIEEAR 11,819 8,199
Amortisation charge (note 6) #IEEA (MiEe) (9,490) (9,322)
Closing carrying amount HAREREA 41,247 37,172
Closing carrying amount HIRAREE
Gross carrying amount IREABE 65,170 60,928
Accumulated amortisation BT (23,923) (23,756)
Closing carrying amount HAREREA 41,247 37,172

All amortisation is included in “research and development

expenses” in the income statement.

FrE#E AER [HEERIA -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—TZE+F+-_A=+—HILFE

17.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted investments, at cost

FEETIRE - AAME

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December

2007 are as follows:

Name of
subsidiary
HWEARER

LETEERRE
BREMAH
(“Launch Shanghai”)

EETEsRRE
ARELERH
([ L&)

Launch Europe GmbH
(“Launch Europe”)

Launch Europe GmbH
(TLaunch Europe])

AT
FRRARAH

(“Launch Software”)

AT
BEYING
(It

Form of
business
structure

BxiHE

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Place of
registration
and operations
EMRER LY

PRC

Germany

PRC

e

Launch Tech Company Limited Z3I T TAERHE AN AR AR

Registered
and fully paid
capital

HRRERER

USD10,000,000
(2006:
USD5,751,369)

10,000,000%7T

(ZZER

5,751 ,369%75)

DM50,000

50,000 55

RMB40,000,000

Nt
40,000,0007C

17.

:

RB AT Z2RE
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR%¥ETT
96,853 78,054
RZTZLF+=ZA=+—8 ' &~AF
MEBA T2 FHIBMT -
Percentage of
registered capital
held by the Company Principal activities

RARNEEMEFADL
directly indirectly
Ei 554
75% 25%
(2006: 50%)  (2006: 50%)

75% 25%
ZEENE: (ZEEAE:
50%) 50%)

100% -

100% -

90% 10%

90% 10%

IRRH

Manufacturing of
equipment and
machines for
maintenance of
automobiles

BBk
LEERE

Sales of accessories,
equipment and
machines for the
automotive
aftermarket

HERBETS
i t=T i
R RHS

Development,
manufacturing
and sales of
equipment for
the automotive
aftermarket

Fi%  HENHE
RERTSZ

i
X



Notes to the Financial Statements

B FE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

18. R—EBE QR 2 #m

Group Company
c3E] NG|
2007 2006 2007 2006
“TTEF ZFEAF —TTLF BTN

RMB'00O0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’'000
ARBTT ARETE AREBTT ARETE

Balance at 1 January R—A—Bz#&&#% 389 1,350 1,350 1,350
Further investment E—KRE
in an associate i 1) /N 10,000 = 10,000 =
Share of associate’s results FE{HE & A T4 (2,753) (961) — =
Balance at 31 December W+ —-A=+—H
R 7,636 389 11,350 1,350

Particulars of the associate at 31 December 2007 are as

W=ZRLE+-A=+—0  BED

follows: A2 BT

Place of Percentage of

Registered Fully paid  registration and interest held by

Name capital capital operation the Company

£ EfEx BkEx  dEMRERME FARNEREADLL

HETEERRAE RMB54,500,000 RMB49,500,000 PRC 30%

REERAR (2006: RMB4,500,000) (2006: RMB4,500,000) (2006: 30%)
(“SK Launch”)

HERiEERRAE AR%54,500,00070 AR 49,500,000 G 30%

REERAR (Z2FNF : ARB4500000T)  (ZFFAF : ARK4,500,0007T) (Z2F7F : 30%)
(ISK Launch])

On 25 April 2006, the Board of Directors of SK Launch
approved an increase in registered capital from
RMB4,500,000 to RMB54,500,000. The Group has to further
inject RMB15,000,000 for the investment in the associate
and RMB10,000,000 was fully paid during the year.

RZEZERFWMA=-ZF+AHAB SK
LaunchZ= £ & #t /& & Nl & &
M A R #4,500,0007C # = A R #&
54,000,0007T ° AREEEFEINEIEAR
#15,000,0007CIEE B & A E] - FA
B AR 10,000,000 7T ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE—_ZTZ+F+_A=+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 18.
(Continued)

The summarised financial information of the associate

extracted from its PRC financial statements are as follows:

R—EEE QR 2z (8)

mEEPBRYBHRE CAKEBE N F
MBERBENT

2007 2006
fgg‘ti TEERF
RMB’0O RMB’000

/\E”%UFE ARET T

Assets BiE 71,438 11,511
Liabilities BE 34,415 10,214
Revenues W zs 4,928 1,162
Loss for the year FREE (9,2593) (3,279)
19. INVENTORIES 19. FE&
Group Company
8 NG|

2007 2006 2007 2006

—EELF ZEBERF ZEELF —EBERF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT AREBTT AR®ETT

Raw materials R A% 29,315 30,587 16,512 15,308
Work in progress F A G 7,529 12,474 2,826 5,256
Finished goods BURK G 46,321 39,158 38,684 35,636
83,165 82,219 58,022 56,200

During the year, the Group and the Company made a specific
provision for slow-moving inventories of RMB495,000
and RMB261,700 respectively which is included in other

operating expenses in the consolidated income statement.

In 2006, the Group and the Company reversed a general
provision for slow-moving inventories of RMB1,819,000
which was included in cost of sales in the consolidated
income statement.

Launch Tech Company Limited Z#3I| i TTAERHZ AN B R A 7

RAFE « AEBRARQE D BIFHH
TFEERRIEE AR 495,000 T R A
R¥261,700 7T © RiRA WS R E AL
R AR -

REZZTEARF AEERARQAG®E
17 B — AR A R 1,819,000
TC ' ERGARERIEERARIIER



Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The fair values of trade receivables are as follows:

Trade receivables
Less: provision for
impairment of

receivables

FEUE 5 8RR
B FEUERIR
B

20. B E 5 IR

FEWE ZRRK 2 AFEMT ¢

Group Company
e N
2007 2006 2007 2006
“EELF —ZERFE —TELF —BTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFIT AR¥TT ARBTT AR¥ETRT
262,514 244,355 203,331 226,349
(10,932) (10,571) (10,932) (10,571)
251,582 233,784 192,399 215,778
rEBGETHEESIEP—Z2XEAZE

The Group’s credit terms are one to six months for its trade

customers. The following is the ageing analysis of trade

receivables, based on the invoice dates, as at 31 December

2007:

Within 6 months

Over 6 months but less
than 1 year

Over 1 year but less
than 2 years

NEAR

NEA R EBDR—5

—FU EEDRME

Eﬁﬂ LAT?%ETF?" =H HﬁZFEHSZféf%

tﬁlA Pax ik
Group Company
£E NC]|

2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELF ZBERFE —TTLF —TERHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTRE ARETT ARETT
136,782 107,868 97,590 89,862
72,111 56,495 57,673 56,495
42,689 69,421 37,136 69,421
251,582 233,784 192,399 215,778
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—TZE+F+-_A=+—HILFE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. EWWE SR (&)
Included in trade receivables are the following amounts EUWE SERE BIE AT ABEEEI8E
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency ERARNEEAEMNNZERARS
of the entity to which they relate: %
Group Company
e ] A
2007 2006 2007 2006
—ZEEF ZTTRNF TTLF ZEBTRE
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
T T Tt T
US dollars EViH 24,059 22,615 19,462 22,116
The movement in the provision for impairment of trade FLIEWE B BRI BB E L B
receivables is as follows: PN
Group Company
e NG|
2007 2006 2007 2006

—BELFE —EEIRFE —ZIELFE —TERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTIT AR®TRT ARETT ARKETET

Balance at 1 January R—A—Bz#&& 10,571 = 10,571 =
Amount written off EH SRR (10,571) - (10,571) =
Impairment loss R EFR AR 2

charged to the EEE

income statement 10,932 10,571 10,932 10,571

Balance at 31 December WM+ —-_A=+—82Z

23 10,932 10,571 10,932 10,571
At each of the balance sheet date, the Group’s trade REB—HEH  AEBZEKE SRR
receivables were individually determined for impairment SEEEESERE - [E5EREZ
purposes. The individually impaired receivables are EURERDNIREP 2EERAE - BBE
recognised based on the credit history of its customers, #HoPR - HRAR  UERERTRT
indication of financial difficulties, default in payments, LARERR o AL B EREAIBERE o &
and current market conditions. Consequently, specific SEWEM IS SR EEAERR

impairment provision was recognised. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

96  Launch Tech Company Limited JZ&JI|[T TTAERI BB B R AT



Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

21.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are not impaired

is as follows:

Neither past due
nor impaired

Overdue within 1year

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related

to a number of customers that the Group had continuing

business relationships with these customers including sales

to and settlements from these customers in general, which in

the opinion of the directors have no indication of default.

BILLS RECEIVABLE

The fair values of bills receivable are as follows:

Bills receivable aged
within 6 months

20. EWWE ZRM (&)
W E 2 FEUWE 5 AR K 2 BR Bk D AT 40
TS @
Group Company
=] N
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EBEELF —EEFRE —TELFE —TETRE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETT ARETTT ARETT
I R m HA SR (B
100,385 115,839 59,690 97,833
BE—FLAT 151,197 117,945 132,709 117,945
251,582 233,784 192,399 215,778
BEHERERE - BERNEBEEET
BEGHER2ZR2EPBHE 2 ERIE
N BIERIEE THRERPREZER
P2 ESREVESGRERE
m o
21. EWERE
EWEEZ ATFEIT
Group Company
=] ~A]
2007 2006 2007 2006
—BELFE —EEIRFE —ZITLFE —TERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT AREBTT AR%TT
BRERTE/~MEL A LA
) A EE 2,510 = 1,000 =
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE—_ZTZ+F+_A=+—HILFE

22. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 22, HitEWFIE - HERTE
PREPAYMENTS FFE
Group Company
£E NG]
2007 2006 2007 2006
—ETEF ZEBTRF —TTHF ZBERF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
Deposits Be 555 46 143 22
Prepayments TEfSSRIE 37,679 26,851 32,705 25,138
Other receivables H fth e RIE 69,113 54,996 61,060 51,068
Software tax refundable  AJ 3R B E{F 7 2,589 6,633 957 4,233
Value added tax RED 32,478 17,338 29,913 12,517
Dividend receivable FEW—RNEB AR
from a subsidiary 2B - 99,000 =
142,414 105,864 223,778 92,978

23.

Included in other receivables are advances to the staff of the
Group and the Company which amounted to RMB9,047,000
and RMB8,696,000 respectively (2006: RMB3,717,000
and RMB3,147,000) in aggregate. Such advances are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2006, other receivables included an
amount of RMB5,541,000 which was held under custodian
by two of the Company’s directors namely Mr. Liu Xin and
Mr. Liu Jun in the course of business of the Group. These
amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO)
SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable

on demand.

Launch Tech Company Limited Z#3I| i TTAERHZ AN B R A 7

23.

HibEYSRIB R ENASE RAQEE
BEEZER  BESBEHREARE
9,047,000 7t & A R # 8,696,000 7T (=
TERF  AR¥3,717,000 AR
#£3,147,0007T) © LLEERAF I AR -
BB RAREERNER -

RZZERF+_A=+—H - HEfhfE
WERIBEIEARRMUESZRIFEER
RIS R AR B 2 T RIR LAEE
FRFEZAREES541,0007T ° 2%
FEAERT R RAREREE

A

yl[o

A BRR (FER)

AR S EE - 2B RGBS E

o

ol
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25.

26.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B FE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED
COMPANY

Group and Company

ER i CRYND

BRATA
Maximum amount outstanding RAFERER
during the year b5 et

Mr. Liu Xin and Mr. Liu Jun, directors of the Company, are the
shareholders of this related company. At 31 December 2006,
the amount was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The balance was fully repaid during 2007.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BILLS
PAYABLE

The deposits are pledged to banks to secure certain banking
facilities granted to the Group and the Company.

24.

25.

26.

—EBE X BRI

ZAAREEE - 2B RN BAEE
%O

—MBEATRK
EBR AT

2007 2006

—EELF  ZEBTRHF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TRT

= 1,271

1,271 1,271

RARIERRF R EREIH LA AL
Eﬁ@@TZ%% RZETRF+A

=t+—H ZREAEER 2B LA
E’é%qﬁﬁﬂaﬁ F O [y e o=
EHERE -

BERBITER EBARE

FREEMTIRT - FRETAKER
ARRETRITRE 2B
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE—_ZTZ+F+_A=+—HILFE

27. TRADE PAYABLES 27. BENEZ KRN
The ageing analysis of trade payables as at 31 December N-BEL+E+-A=+—0 ENEH
2007 is as follows: DI R DITAE
Group Company
L] NG
2007 2006 2007 2006
—ET G ZEERF ITTLEF ZERRHF

RMB'00O0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTT AR®ETRT ARETT ARETT

Within 6 months A~EAR 54,876 59,939 16,155 22,921
Over 6 months but less ~ 7~fE A LA

than 1 year BLR—F 7,105 5,971 4,733 2,985

Over 1 year but less —FLAE
than 2 years BLRME 2,406 2,209 691 564
64,387 68,119 21,579 26,470
28. BORROWINGS 28. (& &
Group Company
SE NG|
2007 2006 2007 2006
BT LF ZEBERFE —_EELF BT

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’'000
ARBTT AR®TT ARETT ARETT

Bank loans RITER
Secured RER 337,926 208,339 337,926 188,339
Unsecured A 969 60,000 - 60,000
338,895 268,339 337,926 248,339
Less: Current portion o BRERRE
due within one BEET—F
year included M ER 2 B AR
under current liabilities 5 (233,323) (173,339) (232,926) (153,339)
Non-current portion included  ‘BERIERE & E1E
under non-current liabilities T2 FEBIERER S 105,572 95,000 105,000 95,000

100  Launch Tech Company Limited SFIIM TTAERHERL D AR A 7



Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

28. BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s and the Company’s

borrowings were repayable as follows:

28. fEE ()

R_FEEt+tF+-_H=+—H

 REE

RARBZEERRTHIHRER

Group Company
£ NG

2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELFE —EBFRE —TELFE —TETREF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETRT AREBTT ARETET
Within one year —FR 233,323 173,339 232,926 153,339
In the second year REZF 90,396 35,000 90,000 35,000
In the third to the fifth year HE=FEFHF 15,176 60,000 15,000 60,000
338,895 268,339 337,926 248,339

All bank borrowings are denominated in RMB and are
repayable in one to three years since the draw down date.
Bank borrowings for the Group of RMB150,968,000 (2006:
RMB19,940,000) and for the Company of RMB150,000,000
(2006: RMB19,940,000) bear a fixed interest rate at 5.82%
(2006: 6.138%) and at 5.59% (2006: 6.138%) per annum
respectively. The remaining borrowings bear floating rates
ranging from 5.58% to 8.89 % (2006: 5.85% to 7.96%) per
annum.

At 31 December 2007, the banking facilities of certain
subsidiaries and the Company, were secured by land,
buildings, fixed deposits of the Group as detailed in note
13, 14 and 26 and personal guarantee provided by certain
shareholders/directors. Such banking facilities amounted to
RMB400,295,000 to the Group (2006: RMB56,701,000) and
RMB399,218,000 to the Company (2006: RMB56,701,000)
respectively. The Group and the Company had utilised an
amount of RMB275,375,000 (2006: RMB52,544,000) and
RMB274,407,000 (2006: RMB52,544,000) respectively, at
31 December 2007.

FTERITIEEHUARE BEHEBAL -
WAMNMRR BB —FE=FHREER - K
SEEARRNRITEED B AARE
150,968,000 (=T E N F : AR
19,940,000 7T ) & A & # 150,000,000
T(ZZEERF : AR %19,940,000
TL) D AREEFFEERE(ZE
TREF  6.138[F) K 559E (ZTEX
F:6.188FE )T B c HHBEEUNT
558 EE889FE (ZTTNF : 585F
Z7.96F) 2FBFEREETE -

RZZBZLF+ZA=+—8 HTH
BRARKEKANGZIBITRIEARNER 2
Tib - EF - EEBFER(AMEE13 14
Ko FiFfil) R TRE " EERH
BARRIERER - ZEARNEE 2 RTT
A& B AR A400,295,0007T( —TE
NI AR¥56,701,0007T) © AR
ZRITEVE Bl AR # 399,218,000 7T
(ZEZRF  AR¥56,701,0007T) °
R=ZZBZTLF+=-A=+—0 F&£H
EARREIEEA AR 275,375,000 7T
(ZEZTRF : AR¥52,544,0007T) &
AR¥E274,407,0007( ZZFZRF A
R 52,544,0007T) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Ly e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2007 &(ZE ==

L= A= T—ALFR

29.

30.

DEFERRED TAX

As at 31 December 2007, the Group and the Company did
not have material unprovided deferred tax liabilities.

SHARE CAPITAL

Share capital of RMBO0.10 RZEERF—HA—F"
each at 1 January 2006

REEARK0.10 T2 RA
Issue of H Shares BT HRR
At 31 December 2006 RZEERFTZA=1—H

53
=S
1
T
=S

Issue of H Shares

. ERERIE
RZZET+F+_A=+—0 ~5%H
R R BT & AR 2 IR AT
RAfE -
. B
Number of shares Registered,
RPEE issued
Domestic and and fully paid
unlisted foreign shares H Shares i BRI
RERKLTHER HR REK
'000 '000 RMB'000
TR TR ARETT
330,000 190,000 52,000
- 38,000 3,800
330,000 228,000 55,800
- 45,600 4,560
330,000 273,600 60,360

At 31 December 2007 R-EZ+F+-_A=1—H

Except for the currency in which dividends are paid and
the restrictions as to whether the shareholders can be PRC
investors or foreign investor, domestic and unlisted foreign
shares and H Shares rank pari passu in all respects with each
other.

On 11 December 2007, the Company, by means of placing
of new H shares to institutional investors, issued and allotted
an aggregate of 45,600,000 new H Shares of RMB 0.10 each
at a price of HK$1.63 per H Share. After the completion of
the subscription of H Shares, the Company’s number of total
issued shares and issued H shares increased to 603,600,000
shares and 273,600,000 shares respectively.

Launch Tech Company Limited Z3I T TAERHE AN AR AR

B MBRE BB REERHIBRAF
EREEHIEREEI  RE - K
ETINEREE H A S 5 A R S

o

)

R-_ZEZE+F+_A+—H  AAQA7
MBI A B EFTHE - LABIRH
1.63 T2 BRE HBETERAEEA
R¥0.1070 2 $H% 45,600,000/ -
RHIRRBTEAE - AR RZ BT
B 1D B 8 R B B ITHRR AR 0 5 Bl g =
603,600,0000% }273,600,0004% °



Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R a3k MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

31. RESERVES 31. f#E

(@ Group (@ &£HE
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the AEBZRBESEARETFER
movements therein for the current and prior years are BEFEZRESLH 2N
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in MR EEREERERA < &
equity of the financial statements. Nature and purpose EAEE AELme kAR
of the statutory surplus reserve, statutory public welfare F 2 148 & A A T ST 5 (b) %
fund and retained profits are explained in note (b) Bl o
below.

(b)  Company (b) 2AF

Statutory Statutory

Share surplus public Retained
premium reserve  welfare fund profits Total
RtaE  AELAEE  EELNEE REER @t

RMBOOO  RMB'000 RMB'000 RVMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTL  ARBTR  AREBTL  ARETR

At 1 January 2006 RZEE/ F—F—H 169,594 11,559 11,559 98,078 290,790
Issue of H shares FTHKR 63,417 - - - 63,417
Share issue expenses RAHETER (6,529) - - - (6,529)
Appropriations Al - 4,042 4,042 (8,084) -
Loss for the year FEER - - - (22,449) (22,449)
2006 proposed final “ERERIRREARE

dividend - - - (19,530) (19,530)

At 31 December 2006 RS/ F+-A=1—H
#—R—H

and at 1 January 2007 FZETE-f— 226,488 15,601 15,601 48,015 306,705
Issue of H shares ZTHR 66,236 - - = 66,236
Share issue expenses RAENER (8514) = = = (8,514)
Appropriations iy - 3779 3,779 (7,558) -
Profit for the year EREA - - - 11,263 11,263
2007 proposed final “ELLERK

dividend RERE = = = (30,180) (30,180)
At 31 December 2007 RZETtET-A=1-H 284,210 19,380 19,380 21540 344,510
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—TZE+F+-_A=+—HILFE

31. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Company (Continued)

Notes:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

Share premium is the excess of the proceeds received over
the nominal value of the shares of the Company issued at a
premium, less the amount of expenses incurred in connection
with the issue of the shares.

Statutory surplus reserve

The Company’s Articles of Association requires the
appropriation of 10% of profit after income tax each year to
the statutory surplus reserve until the balance reaches 50%
of the registered share capital. According to the provision
of the Company’s Articles of Association, under normal
circumstances, the statutory surplus reserve shall only be
used for making up losses, capitalisation into share capital and
expansion of the Company’s production and operation. For the
capitalisation of statutory surplus reserve into share capital, the
remaining amount of such reserve shall not be less than 25%
of the registered share capital. The transfer to the statutory
surplus reserve is based on the net profit in the financial
statements prepared under PRC accounting standards.

Statutory public welfare fund

Statutory public welfare fund represents the appropriation
of profit after income according to the requirements of the
Company’s Articles of Association and the PRC Company
Law. According to the requirements, the Company shall make
allocation from profit after income tax at the rate of 5% to
10% to the statutory public welfare fund. The statutory public
welfare fund can only be utilised on capital items for employees’
collective welfare. Individual employees only have the right
to use these facilities, the titles to which will remain with the
Company. The statutory public welfare fund forms part of
the shareholders’ equity but is not distributable other than in
liquidation. The transfer to the statutory public welfare fund is
based on the net profit in the financial statements prepared
under PRC accounting standards.

Retained profits

The reserve available for distribution to shareholders is based
on the lower of the aggregate amount of profit after income tax
for the year and retained profits brought forward determined
under PRC accounting regulations and that determined under
Hong Kong generally accepted accounting principles after
deduction of the current year’s appropriations to the statutory
surplus reserve and statutory public welfare fund.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

32. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT

Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 1 June 2006, the Group acquired 100% of the registered
capital of Launch Software, which is principally engaged in
development, manufacturing and sales of equipment for the
automotive after market. The acquired business contributed
revenue of approximately RMB6,851,000 and net loss of
RMB11,935,000 to the Group for the period from 1 June
2006 to 31 December 20086. If the acquisition had occurred
on 1 January 2006, the Group’s revenue would have been
approximately RMB7,594,000 and loss allocations would
have been RMB12,943,000.

Details of the net assets acquired and goodwiill are as follows:

32.

Purchase consideration paid by cash LR € S HUEERE
Fair value of net assets acquired (also Wi 2 FEERNTE
the carrying values): (MREEE) :

Property, plant and equipment

(note 13) (MF7E13)
Trade receivables U E SRR
Other receivables, deposits and HoAh e Uk

prepayments TETEIR
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBEIRS
Other payables E e3R8

Fair value of net assets acquired WiE 2 FEERN
Goodwill (note 15) EEGERRY)

R

¥

P4

RERTREBRME

Wi — B A F
EA_? 7/\¢/\ﬂ H KEIMZE%E
IEEH100% s E AR » 5% ARl =240

EHE AERBEABEEMSR
B -RBEERNFAAA—BEZZTEAR

F+-ZA=1+—BHM  WEEBAL
B F RS AR 6,851,000 &
TR 1B AR ¥11,935,0007T © fHARER
“EENFE-A—BET REEZI
=g ALK AR 7,594,0007T ¢ EE
DA A AR 12,943,000 7T °

Wi EEFERAEFBOT:

2006
ZETRF
RMB’000
AREFTT

1,000

8,772
172

1,003
27
(9,996)

(22)

1,022
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE—_ZTZ+F+_A=+—HILFE

32. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 32.

33.

Launch Tech Company Limited Z#3I| i TTAERHZ AN B R A 7

STATEMENT (Continued)

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)

The goodwill is attributable to the synergies expected to arise

after the Group’s acquisition of Launch Software.

Satisfied by:
Cash

Cash flows arising from the acquisition:
Cash consideration
Bank balances and cash acquired

Net cash outflow in respect of
the acquisition of a subsidiary

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

AR

WEERELZRERE ¢
BENE
IRITHEMMTEIRE

As at 31 December 2007, the Group and the Company had
commitments for future minimum lease payments in respect

of land and buildings under non-cancellable operating leases

which fall due as follows:

Within one year —F R

In the second year “EEFERF
to fifth year

After the fifth year HFEUE

REREREBRMTE (&)

W iE— BB LR (&)
AER RN ASE W E TS LA
B4 RIZE o

2006
—ETREF
RMB’000
ARMEFTT

1,000

1,000
(27)

WiE—ENBAR RS
R

973
3. MEMHYRIE

R-BZLF+-_A=1t—0  X&HE
KR ARE R HGH 2 R E AR

REFERTIIFRANXMNBEZ &
ERBAAENT
Group Company
e N
2007 2006 2007 2006
—TETAF ZERERFE TTHF ZRTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTRT ARETT ARETET
3,917 4,005 2,446 3,359
8,288 6,227 3,138 4,887
67 488 67 488
12,272 10,720 5,651 8,734

The lease payments are fixed and no arrangements have

been entered into for contingent rental payments.

FONZTEFE MRS AT R
BTN ZHE ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

34. FUTURE OPERATING LEASE 34.

ARRANGEMENTS

As at 31 December 2007, the Group and the Company had
future aggregate minimum lease receipts in respect of land
and buildings under non-cancellable operating leases as

ARREEHENZHE

R-ZEZLF+-_A=+—H  &x&E
RARRBERIBEN AR < E LB
T3 MEF R AT FHANER 2 RIEHE

follows: ST
Group Company
SET ~A]
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EEEF ZFEN —EEEF ZTEN
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETT
Within one year —FA 5,554 - 5,554 -
In the second year F_FEFRF
to fifth year 16,092 - 16,092 -
After the fifth year AFALE 18 = 18 =
21,664 - 21,664 -

The Group and the Company leases certain portion of the
buildings (note 13) under operating lease arrangements
which run for an initial period of one to six years. The terms of
the leases generally also require the tenants to pay security
deposits. There is no arrangement of contingent rental

receivables.

AEBERARBIRBELERLD (PIFF
HR—F2/F)HEETETEH (M
FE13) o WFEBH Z IER—RETHAMR
ABSNERE - WEBRSARKAE
Ea-s 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE—_ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure
contracted but not
provided for in the
financial statements:

— acquisition of property,
plant and equipment
— capital injections to
an associate

35. EXAIE
Group Company
£ NG
2007 2006 2007 2006
“EELF —EBERF —TTLF —TER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
BELMBRR
SRR EE
BEARY :
—WEEmE - BE K&
B - 27,482 — 27,482
— [ — Bt & A F)
TE 5,000 = 5,000 =
5,000 27,482 5,000 27,482
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—TE+F+_A=+—HILFE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme approved
by a resolution of the shareholders of the Company dated 21
March 2002 (the “Share Option Scheme”), the Company, for
the purpose of encouraging the participants to perform their
best in achieving the goals of the Group, may grant options
to employees including any directors of the Company or its
subsidiaries to subscribe for the H Shares in the Company.
An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 28
days from the date of offer, and a consideration of RMB1.00
is payable by each of the participants on acceptance of the
grant of options. The Share Option Scheme will remain valid
for a period of ten years commencing on 21 March 2002.
An option may be exercised at any time during a period to
be notified by the directors of the Company to each grantee
provided that the period within which the option must be
exercised shall be not less than two years and not more than
10 years from the date of grant. The subscription price for H
Shares under the Share Option Scheme will be determined
by the directors and notified to each grantee and will be no
less than the highest of (a) the closing price of the H Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant, which must be a business day; (b) the
average closing price of the H Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal
value of a H Share.

36. BBRERTE

BBEERAGIREN ST _F=H
ZH—BZAREMBACARAER
RS ([HERERTE))  AAF AR
BoHEEREEERAEEZ BIZ
AAEE (BIEARRHIENB AR Z
FRZESE) R TERE  URBAQF
ZHEE - RS EELZNT T HERE
ZEZVEREZASET -+ N\BR
B B TRERERT ARSI
KEBEARB10T - BRiENEZE
MER —EE—F=A —+—Hist5A
H1F - GBERERTRAAREZESR
MBZERAZ R EARBERTTE « R
AR F1TE 2 B AR H 2 BRRRT
ARERRE LR T o BRERT IR
THR RBEBRESETRBAX
BA - REBETSERUAT=EZ2&D
H QEEEREBHWERZEXR)
HEE R B RX ATz B3RFTRATHI 2 T fE
(o) BERHBEREB ST AL %A H
AR FAESE 22 BT B Rk FT 51 2 SEA UL TR A(E
FOHBRZEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 &(ZE ==

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

However, for employees who are PRC nationals and have
taken up any options to subscribe for the Company’s H

Shares, they shall not be entitled to exercise the options until:

(i) The current restrictions imposed by the relevant PRC
laws and regulations restricting PRC nationals from
subscribing for and dealing in H Shares or any laws and
regulations with similar effects have been abolished or

removed; and

(i)  The China Securities Regulatory Commission or other
relevant government authorities in the PRC have
approved the new issue of H Shares upon the exercise
of any options which may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme.

The total number of H Shares subject to the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes must not,
in aggregate, exceed 30% of issued H Shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. The total number of H
Shares available for issue under options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other schemes, must not in
aggregate, exceed 10% of the number of H Shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. The Company may seek
approval from shareholders in general meeting for renewing
the 10% limit or for granting further options beyond the 10%
limit, provided that the options in excess of the 10% limit
are granted only to participants specifically identified by the

Company before such approval is sought.

Launch Tech Company Limited Z3I T TAERHE AN AR AR

L= A= T—ALFR

36.

BRETE (F&)

A - B EBERIY S EAAREAR
RAHBZ BB 2 BB EE U TKRE
AT

) FTEHEERGHIEBRIABLEER
HE R E ROAR AR LK
N2 ERMERBRFHEINZ R
B BERR SRR ¢ R

i) TFEEFEEEEZBE®UF
H A 18 B 2 R 4 R kA R A
BT BB R I TR IR AT
HA

BRERt B R b B A iR T 8IFTY
Kz Hi A g & AR B A R BT
EETTH B Z230% ° BBARHERT &I K (EfA
HAbFT S|P RERE M Al 31T 2 HAR
REBA AT ABBARR R TR EITH
PREE Z210% ° ARRIAINIRRAG S
SRAKER AL/ 5 #T I 10% R Sl HE/fEE —
SR 10% R AR 2 BREE - HEER
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37.

38.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—TE+F+_A=+—HILFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

No employee of the Company or its subsidiaries shall be
granted an option which, if all the options granted to the
employee (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period up to the date of grant, shall not
exceed 1% of the H Shares in issue at the date of grant.

No option has been granted by the Company under the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

RETIREMENT PLANS

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its
employees in the PRC. The Group is required to contribute
8.0% to 22.5% of the basic salaries of its employees to the
retirement plans, and has no further obligation for the actual
payment of the previous or post retirement benefits. The
relevant state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible for
the entire present obligation to retired employees.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions were carried out with a related
party:

36.

37.

38.

Sales to an associate HE T —EE R A

Sales to an associate were conducted in the normal course
of business at prices and terms no less than those charged
to and contracted with other third party customers of the
Group.

The Group did not enter into any material related party
transactions during the year other than as disclosed above
and elsewhere in the financial statements.

BRETE (F&)

RARHENBRRIZ EEER T ZE
RAENEE R ERERE BIE+—
B ABAET TRERE L BB #1T
HA%Z 1% ©

B SRR ST B - AR R

BRI AR -
RIREHE

REBEHBOERMOEHZRE - AKEA
RETEREREREBRIRETEIH
e AEEAXNE TELRFH£8.0%
£22.5% 2 GBI RERRGH 82 #15K -
M BB TG IR IRAT R B 2 BRR AT
Ko B BRERNTEIEER
RRE TAREMARTEE

BEREEALTZRS

ATRGREREATETZRS ¢

2007 2006
—TTHE  —EEAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR®BTET

2,771 562

HE T —HBE AR ELERRKBIE
o R NER S AR E E A =
HEPRIN 2B KB RAFFAETT

B EXRATEREREMEBD ANES
SN A - AREREA R ETE AR
BALRS -
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L= A= T—ALFR

39. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 390. ElEEEEREBE

112

POLICIES

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash
equivalents, deposits, other receivables, trade receivables,
bills receivable and amount due from a related company.
The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, bills
payable, deposits received, accrued liabilities and other
payables.

The Group does not have written risk management policies
and guidelines. However, the board of directors meets
periodically to analyse and formulate strategies to manage
the Group’s exposure to market risk, including changes in
interest rates and currency exchange rates.

39.1 Interest rate risk
The Group has no significant interest bearing assets
apart from cash and bank deposits. The Group
currently have bank borrowings with fixed and floating
interest rates as disclosed in note 28.

Interest rate sensitivity

At 31 December 2007, the Company was exposed
to changes in market interest rates through its bank
borrowings, which are subject to variable interest
rates. The following table illustrates the sensitivity of
the net result for the year and equity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates of +1% and-1%
(2006: +1% and -1%), with effect from the beginning
of the year. These changes are considered to be
reasonably possible based on observation of current
market conditions. The calculations are based on the
Group’s and the Company’s bank borrowings held at
each balance sheet date. All other variables are held

constant.

Launch Tech Company Limited Z3I| T TAERHE AN AR AR
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R-EBLF+-A=+—8
ARTEBRRTERARTS
HESBHEAR - BT TEFRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE—_ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

39. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

39.1 Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity (Continued)

2007 2007

SETLE STTLE CFEAE CERAE

+1% -1%

RMB’000

39. EREE B FERBE (&)

39.1

2006

-1%

RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETE A

M=k ()
FIE R ()

Company
NS

2007 2007 2006 2006

STLE CTELE CREAF CTEAF

+1% -1% +1% -1%

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

RETT ARBTT ARRTT ARET

Net (loss)/profit for AEEF
the year (Bi#8)/ 55 @321 2321 1579 (2344 2344 (1,573) 1573
39.2 Credit risk 39.2 EEEM
The carrying amounts of trade receivables and other FEWE 5 BR 5/ I B At E U R IE 2
receivables represent the Group’s maximum exposure FHE RASE 2/mE
to credit risk in relation to its financial assets. It is the EBBzERNEERRE - AATA
Group’s policy that receivable balances are monitored BUR Ty 15 B B R FE W R IB 6R 28 -
on an ongoing basis. The allowance for impairment has I B AERE R R A B IR
been made to reduce the exposure to the credit risk in BHEEERR - BRAEHEE
relation to the receivables. Other than this there are no N REEAL EEEMSEE
significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group EREcEXEERR
in relation to other financial assets.
39.3 Foreign currency risk 39.3 JMER R
The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in AEBERIINEERFERIE 2T

foreign currency exchange rates relates primarily to
certain trade receivables and certain cash and cash
equivalents in currencies other than the functional
currency of RMB.

BEk  FTEHRADEEEAR
BUINEBIEZE TRKES
ERkETHR2MASEFEYNA
[ -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE—_ZTZ+F+_A=+—HILFE

39. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)

39.3 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity

Most of the Group’s sales to foreign countries are
carried out in US-Dollars and the sales made by
a subsidiary in Germany are carried out in Euros.
Exposures to currency exchange rates arise from
the Group’s overseas sales, which are primarily

denominated in US-Dollars and Euros.

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and
liabilities, translated into RMB at the closing rate, are as

follows:

2007
ETERF

Trade receivables

Other receivables, deposits
and prepayments

Amount due from subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents

Current financial assets

Other payables, accruals
Borrowings

Current financial liabilities
Current net exposures

Non-current financial liabilities —
Borrowings

Non-current net exposures

R Z R
HioEWEIR - e
RIENFR
W8 1 A SR IR
RekBLEEY

RO EBEE

Hit A 5UR KRR B
fBE

nHTHEE
BRI

FRBTRAE—
fE&

FEREFE R ATE

Launch Tech Company Limited Z#3I| i TTAERHZ AN B R A 7

39. EEEEZEREEK (&)

39.3 JNE &Lk

(%)

ISR
R E S E R R A5
HEEEED - TR EE—R
B4 B 2 1140 885 BUIA BT AR -
AR BN B NS T R 1
RBAR  EEUZBERETA
B -

THASNE R EBEMNERE
ENRBEREE B R THE XK

BER/ARE :
Group Company
£H yNC]

RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
Usb EUR usD EUR
X BT ETT BT
183,468 13,673 142,162 -
- 3,172 - -
- - 34,341 -
68,019 1,990 66,284 -
251,487 18,835 242,787 =
- (1,713) - -
(28,357) (396) (28,357) -
(28,357) (2,109 (28,357) =
223,130 16,726 214,430 -
= 572 - -
- 572 - -
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39. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39. EEEBERBEK (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

39.3 Foreign currency risk (Continued) 39.3 SNERE Pz (%)
Foreign currency sensitivity (Continued) SNE G E (4B
2006
ZETRF
Group Company
£E A

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT

usbD EUR usbD EUR
x5 BUT xET BT
Trade receivables N E S ERHK 178,832 12,693 170,015 -
Other receivables, deposits Hib e FIE ~ e
and prepayments RIFEFFIA = 1,275 = =
Amount due from subsidiaries  FEUHT B A T8 - = 26,855 =
Cash and cash equivalents Re RReEEY 36,600 1,852 36,568 =
Current financial assets B HEE 215,432 15,820 233,438 -
Other payables, accruals H A5/ IB R FERTIE (2,109) = =
Borrowings EE (7,195) = (7,195) =
Current financial liabilities B ME E (7,195) 2,109) (7,195) =
Current net exposures TENFE B AR 208,237 13,711 226,243 =
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—TZE+F+-_A=+—HILFE

39. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

39.4 Liquidity risk

The Group exercised liquidity risk management policy
by maintaining sufficient cash level and the availability

of adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. The
remaining contractual maturities at the balance sheet
date of the Group’s and the Company’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be

required to pay.

Launch Tech Company Limited Z#3I| i TTAERHSZ AN B R A 7
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39.4

RENE Z
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FEHEERERHEZBRE  AITRY
BEeREREEBR °

AEBOHRE AT HEE LIRS
RSB WHTHRRE B
REFTRASRTMEERE
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BRUEEREARESEE -
NEBRREERDELBL -
AKERAD AT ELBE K
MEH BB TANBIBRE -
RIEA KRR R (BIELE
BANFEHEOFSNR - %
MARE. - RIEEE R RRTH
) RAKBTLBEXMAR
SRR



Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R MY EE

tFE+TZA=+—HILFE

39. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

39.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

2007
—EELF

Trade payables ERESHE
Bils payable ERZE
Otherpayablesand ~ E{tERFIER
acoed charges ERFEF
Borrowings &8

For the year ended 31 December 2007 &

E2-FE

39. EREEBBERBUR ()

30.4 REESRE (&)

Group Company

£8 Al
Total Inthe Total Inthe
contractual  Within one Inthe  third year contractual ~ Within one Inthe ~ third year
Camying undiscounted  year or on second tothe  Camying undiscounted  yearoron second tothe
amount  cashfow  demand year  fithyear amount  cashflow  demand year  fifthyear
aNARE  R-ER £=2 SOARRE  R-FR #-%
FRHCR FeLRE IRAE  FCf E0F  BEGE ReERE  BAR 0 F2F  F0f
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O0  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000
AEBTL ARETR ARBTT ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARBTT ARETR
64,387 64,387 64,387 - - 21,579 21,579 21,579 - -
18,300 18,300 18,300 - - 18,300 18,300 18,300 - -
19214 19274 19274 = = 12,478 12,478 12478 = =
3388% 366,746 247,106 94,245 16395 337,926 305631 246639 9B3,779 16213
440856 458707 349,067 94,245 15395 390283 407,998 298,996 9B3,779 16213

Annual Report 2007 —2ZF 5

117



118

Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE
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39. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

39.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

39. EEEEZEREEK (&)

39.4

RBELERE (&)

2006
—TTRF
Group Company
£5 AR
Total Inthe Total Inthe
contractual  Within one Inthe  third year contractual ~ Within one Inthe ~ third year
Carrying  undiscounted  year or on second tothe  Camyjing undiscounted  yearoron second tothe
amount  cashflow  demand year  fithyear amount  cashflow  demand year  fifthyear
aNREE  R-ER £=2 SORRRE  R-ER $7%
FHCE FoLRE  IRAE g% E1F  BESE ReBhE 4R g% EHik
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'OOO  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARET ARETR ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETI
Trade payables ERERHE 68,119 68,119 68,119 - - 26470 26470 26470 - -
Bills payable ERZE 6,324 6,324 6,324 - - 1510 1510 1510 = =
Otherpayablesand ~ EL{ffER778
accrued charges RETER 16,486 16,486 16,486 = = 13,239 13,239 13,289 = =
Borrowings 7 28339 286712 184,206 30878 62629 248339 266263 163756 30878 62,629
359268 377641 215134 30878 62629 289558 307482 204975 30878 62,629
39.5 Fair values 39.5 AF{E

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, deposits,
other receivables and trade receivables, amount due
from a related company, trade payables, deposits
received, accrued liabilities and other payables, are
not materially different from their carrying amounts
because of the immediate or short term maturity of
these financial assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HBE—TE+F+_A=+—HILFE

39. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39. AEMEEBERBEK (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

39.6 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by 39.6 REFE P ERMEERERE
category BZ
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets REBR_ZZLFR-ZTR
and liabilities as recognised at 31 Decemeber 2007 F+ZA=Z+—HERNSEE
and 2006 may be categorised as follows. See notes EXBERASENZNTE?
3.14 and 3.20 for explanations about how the category £l5 - F2RMFES.14 K 3.20 -
of financial instruments affects their subsequent THem T EENNAFZEER%
measurement. T ERERE o
i) Financial assets ) EHEE
2007 2006
—ETLF —EER

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®ETT

Current assets REEE
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEY 175,203 45,197
Loans and receivables: B ERGRIE
Trade receivables FEIE H 5108 251,582 233,784
Other receivables, deposits EAbEUGRIAE « EHd
and prepayments SEUNECE] 142,414 105,864
Bills receivable R =% 2,510 =
Amount due from an associate  — B & A 7K 493 43
Amount due from a related —EREE R RRER
company = 1,271
Pledged bank deposits B RITFR 15,669 20,784
587,871 406,943
Non-current assets FREBEE
Pledged bank deposit BB IRITIFR - 5,040
587,871 411,983
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i)

category (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Notes to the Financial Statements
B AR R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE—_ZTZ+F+_A=+—HILFE

39. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

39.6 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:

Current liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables and

accrued charges

Bills payable
Current portion
of borrowings

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings

Launch Tech Company Limited Z#3I| i TTAERHZ AN B R A 7

REAE
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39.

EkEE B R RBEK (&)

39.6 RERE S ERMEERES
BE (&)

fiy

i EMEE
BREBEK A RN TR A

&

2007 2006
ke S —— A

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TT

64,387 68,119
19,274 16,486
18,300 6,324
233,323 173,339
335,284 264,268
105,572 95,000
440,856 369,268




Notes to the Financial Statements
B R ER TR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE—_ZTZT+F+_A=+—HILFE

40. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 40. EXEHE

AEBEERERBRS

The Group’s capital management objectives are:

BRAEBEEEELSFELEE

(i) to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going (i)

concern; BRI EMER )

(i)  to provide an adequate return to shareholders; (i)  MREEMET B

(i)  to support the Group’s sustainable growth; and (i) TRHASERFELER &

(v) to provide capital for the purpose of potential mergers (iv) REEERHAIEETHE R
and acquisitions. B2A-

The Group sets the amount of equity capital in proportion to AEE R HE BB E SR fITEERE

its overall financing structure. The Group manages the capital HIRAR SR - AEEIRCE R s
structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes FEEEENRRSEERENEREL
in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the EHAEE -
underlying assets.
The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at the balance sheet REEE R FERFEEARLLENT ¢
date was as follows:
2007 2006
—ETF —EETRF
RI\/IB 000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARETT
Current liabilities piE =R
Trade payables FERE S FRIE 64,387 68,119
Other payables and accrued charges A FIE R ERTE R 19,274 16,486
Bills payable ANESS 18,300 6,324
Borrowings BE 233,323 173,339
335,284 264,268
Non-current liabilities FREBERE
Borrowings (== 105,572 95,000
Total debt HRfEIE 440,856 359,268
Add: Proposed dividend m: EERe 30,180 19,530
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B Be MRS EEY (175,203) (45,197)
Net debt FEIR 295,833 333,601
Total equity HarEay 523,558 419,159
Less: proposed dividend B EERE (30,180) (19,530)
Adjusted capital KRABEER 493,378 399,629
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio BIEARE AL X 60% 83%
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
BRRBFRGES

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an Annual General Meeting of
Launch Tech Company Limited (the “Company”) will be held at the
conference room, 9th Floor, Office Block, Launch Industrial Park,
North of Wuhe Road, Banxuegang, Longgang District, Shenzhen,
the PRC at 10:00 a.m. on 23 April 2008 Wednesday for the
following purposes:

To pass the following matters as ordinary resolutions:

1. To consider and pass the report of the Directors’
Report for the year 2007;

2. To consider and pass the Supervisory Committee’s
Report for the year 2007,

3. To consider and pass the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year 2007;

4.  To consider and pass the resolution of final dividend
distribution for the year 2007;

5. To consider and pass the resolution for making
allotments of statutory surplus reserve and statutory
public welfare fund for the year 2007;

6. To consider and pass plans to re-appoint Grant
Thornton as independent auditors of the Company for
the year 2008 and to authorise the board of Directors

to fix their remunerations;

7.  To handle any other matters.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

I. To pass the following matters as special resolutions:

1. To consider and resolve that, subject to the approval

of China Securities Regulatory Commission and/or

other relevant statutory authorities in the People’s
Republic of China and/or the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the

proposed allotment and issue of new H shares and/or

domestic shares, the board of Directors be authorised:

to issue and/or place H shares and/or domestic
Shares within a period of 12 months from the
date of this resolution, provided that the total
number of H shares and/or domestic shares to
be placed and/or issued shall not exceed 20%
(the “20% Limit") of the number of H shares and/
or domestic shares of the Company in issue

respectively;

subject to the 20% Limit, to decide the number
of H shares and/or domestic shares to be placed
and/or issued and to deal with any matter arising
from or related to the placing or issue of the new
shares mentioned above;

to amend, in accordance with the increase in
registered capital of the Company, the relevant
articles contained in the Articles of Association in
relation to the registered capital of the Company
and any other articles that require corresponding

amendments; and
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
BRRBFRGES

(d) if any chronological variation of the wordings or
numbering of the articles contained in the Articles
of Association of the Company is necessary
upon application to the companies examination
and approval authority authorised by the
State Council and China Securities Regulatory
Commission for examination and approval, to
make corresponding amendments to the Articles
of Association as required by such authority and
China Securities Regulatory Commission.

By order of the Board

Launch Tech Company Limited
Liu Xin

Chairman

Shenzhen, the PRC
7 March 2008

Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is entitled to
appoint one or more than one proxy to attend and vote on his behalf. A proxy
need not be a member of the Company.

2. To be valid, a form of proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any,
under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of such authority, must be
deposited at (i) the principal place of business in the PRC of the Company, at
9th floor, Launch Industrial Park, North of Wuhe Road, Banxuegang Longgang
District, Shenzhen, the PRC (for holders of domestic shares of the Company);
or (i) the Company’s H share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Room 1712 — 1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (for holders of H shares of the Company), not
less than 24 hours before the time for holding the meeting or appointed time
of voting.

3. Shareholders or their proxies shall present proofs of identities when attending
the AGM.

4, The Registrar of members will be closed from 23 March 2008 to 23 April 2008,
both days inclusive. All transfers accompanied by relevant share certificates
must be lodged with Company’s H share registrar not later than 4:00 p.m. on
23 March 2008.

58 Shareholders entitled to attend the AGM are requested to deliver the reply
slip for attendance to (i) the registered office of the Company (for holders of
domestic shares of the Company); or (i) the Company’s H share registrar (for
holders of H shares of the Company) before 2 April 2008.
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DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

Executive Directors
Mr. Liu Xin (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Jun (Chief executive officer)

Professor Wang Xue Zhi

Non-executive Director
Ms. Liu Yong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Xiao Yu

Professor Hu Zi Zheng

Mr. Yim Hing Wah

SUPERVISORS

Ms. Hou Wen Tao
Mr. Guo Jian Yuan
Mr. Wang Xi Lin

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT

Mr. Liu Chun Ming, ACCA

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Liu Chun Ming, ACCA

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhang Xiao Yu
Professor Hu Zi Zheng
Mr. Yim Hing Wah

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Liu Jun
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Corporate Information
NaE]E R

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Liu Jun
Mr. Liu Chun Ming, ACCA

AUDITORS

Grant Thornton

13th Floor, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong law:
Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo
26th Floor, Jardine House
1 Connaught Place

Hong Kong

As to PRC law:

ZHONG LUN LAW FIRM

12-13/F, Building 1,

China Merchants Tower,

No. 118 Jianguo Road,

Chaoyang District, Beijing 100022,
People’s Republic of China

Suite 17-D, 17/F,

Shenzhen Development Bank Tower,

5047 Shennan Road East, Shenzhen 518001,
People’s Republic of China
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank Of China Shenzhen Branch

10/F, (East) Legend Research & Development Bldg.,
High-tech Industrial Park,

Shenzhen, China

Agricultural Bank of China Shenzhen Cbd Branch
Floor 2, Zhuo Yue Building,

No. 98, First Fu Hua Road,

Fu Tian Dist, Shenzhen

Hang Seng Bank (China) Limited
Unit 105-109, Shenzhen Kerry Centre,

Renminnan Road, Shenzhen, China

Shenzhen Development Bank Co., Ltd.
of Shekou Shenzhen Branch,

No. 36 South of Park, Shekou Road,
Shenzhen, China

Gongdong Development Bank of Shenzhen Branch
21/F, West Block General Store Square,

No.123 Shenan East Rd.,

Shenzhen, China

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Corporate Information
NaE]E R

FEERRT

REERTTIARYI T 21T
AR BRI TR L &
AR EEEE
AR 0 1018

B R EBITRIPOEXAT
YRR
BE—HK I8
FHREZfE

BART(PER)BRAT
BRI AR
Yz EH O EE 105-1095%

R RARTT
RN O 3217

Z3lhn
e AR ER IR 36 5%

BERERBTRINDIT

T
RFE K 123 5%

BEESTEE 21

BERERMDBFEETE

BERREFSFELERAA
BBERRER 1835
BFRPLTE
1712—1716 &

Annual Report 2007 —Z T+ F £

127



Corporate Information
NaE]E R

REGISTERED OFFICE

Xin Yang Building

Bagua Number Four Road
Futian District

Shenzhen, the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Launch Industrial Park
North of Wuhe Road, Banxuegang, Longgang District, Shenzhen,
the PRC

Launch Shanghai Base
No. 661 Baian Road, Angtin Zhen, Jiading District, Shanghai,
the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

Room 1801, 18th Floor
Wing On Central Building
26 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

8196
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